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IN HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE

QUEEN’S BENCH DIVISION
Claim Nos, HQO08X01180
HQO8X01413
HQ08X01416
- HQ08X03220
HQ08X01686
BETWEEN
(1) BISHER AL RAWI
(2) JAMIL EL BANNA
{3) RICHARD BELMAR
(4) OMAR DEGHAYES
(5) MOAZZEM BEGG
(6) BINYAM MOHAMED
(7) MARTIN MUBANGA
Claimants

- and -

(1) THE SECURITY SERVICE -

(2) THE SECRET INTELLIGENCE SERVICE

(3) THE ATTORNEY-GENERAL

(4) THE FOREIGN AND COMMONWEALTH OFFICE
(5) THE HOME OFFICE

Defendants

CLAIMANTS’ PROVISIONAL STATEMENT OF ISSUES

Introduction
§

- 1. The Claimants are former detainees of the United States detention facility at
Guantanamo Bay, Cuba. Prior to their amival at Guantanamo Bay they were
detained at various locations including Zambia, The Gaobia, Morocco, Pakistan
and Afghanistan. They allege that their detention was at all times unlawful and
that they were each the victiﬁzs of extraordinary rendition, torture and inhuman
and degrading treatment. They further allege that the Defendants are Hable to
them in damages at common law and (so far as the first two -Claimants. are
concemed) tnder the Human Rights Act 1998 in respect of their unlawful
detention and ill-treatment. Their claims are summarised at paragraphs 11 to 15

of the Patticulars of Claim served on behalf of the First to Fifth Claimants,
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paragraphs 5-7 of the Particulars of Clair served on behalf of the Sixth Claimant
and paragraphs 1-3 of the Particulars of Claim se._rved on behalf of the Seventh
Claimant. The Claimants’ common law claims are based on false imprisonment,
trespass to the person, conspiracy, torture, breach of contract, negligence and

misfeasance in public office.

2. The Defendants deny any liability to any of the Claimants.

v

Agreed factual backeround common to all claims

3. The following elements of the factual background to the Claimants’ claims are

not in dispute: - : \j
(2) The Claimants were each detained for the following periods:

Mr Al Rawi 8/11/02-30/3/07 (PC 1; D 5%); _

Mr El Banna 8/11/02-19/12/07 (PC 1; D 5); -
Mr Deghayes 1/4/02-20/12/07 (PC'3; Deghayes D 5);

Mr Belmar 7/2/02-25/1/05 (PC 2; Belmar D 5);

Mr Begg 1/2/02-25/1/05 (PC 4; Begg D 5);

Mr Mohamed 10/04/02-23/02/2009 (Mohamed PC 14; Mohamed D 4, 22)

Mr Mubanga 13/03/02-24/01/05 (Mubanga PC 16, 27; Mubanga D 24,37, )

55, 134). " S

(b) The First and Second Defendants (“the Security Services”) were deployed to
the detention facilities in Pakistan, Morocco, Zambia, Afghanistan and
Guantanamo Bay and participated in, aﬁd facilitated, the interrogation of

* detainees held at these Jocations by the provision of quéstions to those
- carrying out inferrogation or by themselves questioning the detainees held
there and benefited from the product of these interrogations. This
participation included participation in the interrogation of each of the

Claimants and included interrogations conducted “jointly” with foreign

! Unless stated to the contrary references o PC are to the Particulars of Claim served on behalf of the
First to Fifth Claimants. References to D are fo the Defence served in relation to Mr Al Rawi and Mr El
Banna. References to other Defences are prefaced by the relevant Claimant’s name ¢.g. Begg D.
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government officials. A schedule (Schedule A) setfing out the admifted
attendance of the Security Services at the interrogation of the Claimants is

anmexed hereto;

(¢} There is now a signiﬁcant body of material in the public domain indicating
that detainees held in Pakistan, Morocco, Afghanistan and Guantanamo in
the period 2001 to 2008 in relation to alleged suspicions of involvement in
terrorism were subjected to systematic abuse amounting to torture and

infrumean and degrading treatment (PC Schedule);

(d)‘SGI“iOUS concerns in relation to detainee treatment were identified by the
Security Services in January 2002, March 2002 and April 2002 (PC 357, 365;
Al Rawi D 89, 95-96, 102, Belmar D 114, 120-121; Deghayes 82, 88-89;
Begg D 159, 165-166; Mohamed D 136; Mubanga D 105, 111). From 26
April 2002 the Security Services received reports about Mr Mohamed’s
detention (Mohamed PC 31; Mohamed D 38). In June 2002 the Security
Services discussed a report produced by United States authorities referring to
sleep deprivation, hooding and withholding of blavkets from a detainee in
Afghanistan  with the FCO but the specifics were not drawn to Ministers’

attention until June 2004 (PC 375; Al Rawi D 103; Belmar D 128; Deghayes
96; Begg 173). In July 2002 Officer 3137 reported a conversation that he
and Officer 702 had had with a US official relating to sleep deprivation,
stress posttions and hooding of Mr Begg (PC 374.6; Al Rawi D 102(5), (6);
Belmar D 127(5), (6); Deghayes 95(5), (6)); Begg 172(5), (6)). The Security
Services "determined that they should suspend their involvement in
interrogations at Guantanamo Bay in February 2004 (D 59(6)). On the 18"
March 2009 the Prime Minister announced that had ordered a review of the
conduct of the Security Services in light of disclosures about the treatment of
the Sixth Claimant and that he would publish the guidance for the

inteirogation of individuals by members of the Security Services;

{e} For a mumber of years the Defendants took no steps to secure the release of
the Claimants from detention and in some cases they indicated that they

would not press for ariy consular access to them or would not object to their
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trial by Military Commission (PC 43, 134.6, 135, 276.5, 279, 306.1;
Mohamed PC 101; Mubanga PC 30(g), 44; D 41; Belmar D 44; Begg D 39.5,
41, 90; Mohamed D 58, 86; Mubanga D 125-134).

Factual issues comymon to all claims

The Defendants’ non-admissions

4. A number of the Claimants’ factual allegations are not positively denied by the

Deféndants but they are, instead, not admitted. These inclade the following:

(2) The Claimants’ allegations that they suffered trespass to the person, tortare
and inhuman and degrading treatment during their detention (PC 66-67, 70,
75-78, 130, 149-150, 160-161, 188-189, 193-196, 209-210, 222-223, 231,
286-287, 301-2; Mohamed PC 99; Mubanga PCY 41D 50, 52~54; Belmar
D 27, 51, 70-71, 110; Deghayes D 38-51, 52, 54 63: Begg D 49, 51, 55, 75;
Mohamed D 121, 156; Mubanga D 8, 88, 116); '

(b) The Claimants’ allegations that their detention and rendition was unlawiul

(PC 72-78, 146-50; Mohamed PC 6, 17, 50-51, 73, 75; Mubanga PC 28-29;

D 51-53: Mohamed D 58, 150-153; Mubanga I 81-82)"

(¢) The Claimants® allegation that no Cabinet Office or other Ministerial
approval was sought for the Security Qervices’ involvement in interrogations

at Guantanamo Bay until March 2002 (PC 360; Al-Rawi D 92-93);

(d) The Claimants’ allegation that no written. gnidance was ever in place in
relation to interrogation of detainees held at Guantanamo Bay (PC 368;
Mubanga PC 42(d), 43(b); Al Rawi D 97; Mubanga D 106-108, 120) and

that the Guidance which was issued in relation to interrogation of detainees

[

2 [NOTE: possibly delete this, since it is dealt with below at para 7{(b).]
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5.

held in Afghanistan was erroneous in lavy (PC 358, 395; Mohamed PC 102;
Al Rawi D145; Mohamed D. 131, 139-142).

The Claimants have also alleged that at all material times the Defendants were
aware, or ought to have been aware, of the United States’ engagement in
extraordinary rendition and their deployment of interrogation meihods which
failed to respect the Geneva Conventions and which constituted inhuman or
degrading treatment and forture (either directly or through intelligence agencies
of other countries known to practise torture) (PC 380-381; Mohamed PC 26-27,
Mubanga PC 30(6)). They have set out a detailed 16 bage chronology
particularising all factual matters in the public domain at the date of service of
the Particulars of Claim and supportive of such a case on knowledge (PC
Schedule). The Defendants have averred that the Particulars of Claim are “vague
and unparticularised” (D 107; Deghayes D 100; Begg D 177; Belmar D 132;
Mohamed D 156-157; Mubanga D 114). They have, however, sought no further
particulars of these paragraphs in the Particulars of Claim and have made no
reference 1o the Claimants’ Schedule, where relevant (either to admit, not admit

or deny the same) in their defences.

The Defendants® denials and positive averments

6.

Certain elements of the Claimants’ claimg are the subject of specific denials and

positive averments. Principal among these are the following:

(2) That at all material times the Security Services acted in tﬁé proper discharge
of their statutory functions 1o protect and safeguard pational security and
protect the United Kingdom from terrorism (Al Rawi D 13-21; Deghayes D
12-20; Begg D 11 19; Belmar D 12-20; Mohamed D 10- 18; Mubanga D 9-
17);

(b) That the security and intelligence services, their servants or agents did not
falsely imprison or commit any act of {respass -against the Claimants (Al
Rawi D 115-117; Deghayes D 108-110, 127- 128; Begg 185, 206; Belmar
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140-142; Mohamed PC 101; Mohamed D 147-149, 155; Mubanga'D 78-79,
87). ‘ :

(c) That the Security Qervices at no point acted furtherance of a joint
enterprise, in concert or combination with the United States or others to do
any unlawful act with infent {0 injure the Claimants or with that as their
predominant purpose or that they were at any point recklessly indifferent as
to their fate (PC 383-387; Mohamed PC 99-101, 103-104; Mubanga PC 28-
30; Al Rawi D 122-124, 132-136; Mohamed D 124-126, 143-146, 154-159;
Mubanga D 56-71, 83-86, 89-91, 93, 117);

(d) That none of the Defendants were in breach of any duty arising out of the
alleged tort of torture (?C 391-398, 420-423, 437-440, 458-462; Mohamed
PC 99-104: Mubanga PC 42-43; Al Rawi D 138-147; Belmar D 159-185;
Deghayes D 138-150; Begg D 213-214; Mohamed D 122-146; Mubanga D
117-123, 143-146);

(¢) That none of the Defendants were in breach of any duty of care owed to the
Claimants in the tort of negligenge (PC 406-408, 428-430, 445-447, 463-465;
Mubanga PC 33-38, 42-43; Mohamed PC 105-107; Begg D 215-217,
Mohamed D 160-164; Mubanga D 99-102, 122, 125);

(f) That the part played by the individual officers of the Secuity Séwices in the
interrogation of the Claimants did not constitute misfeasance in public office
because (1) they were at all times -acting in the exercise of the Security
Services® duty to protect national security; (2) it was not unlawful (3) they
did not intend to injure any of the Claimants; (3) they were not awaze that
they were acting unlawfully and (4) they were not reckless as to whether they
were doing so (PC 410-416, 432-433, 449-450, 467—468; Mohamed PC 108-
113; Mubanga PC 31-32; D 157; Belwar D 205; Begg D 221; Deghayes D
172; Mohamed D 165-170; Mubanga D 95-97).

(g) That no act or omission on the part of the Security Services or the other
Defendants caused any of the Claimants to be detained any longer than they
otherwise would have been or to be ireated any differently than they

6
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otherwise would have been (PC 405, 409, 427, 431, 444, 448, 416; Mohamed
PC 101; Mubanga PC 44; D 150, 153, 160; Deghayes D 161, 167, 175; Begg
D 218, 225; Belmar D 197, 202, 209; Mohamed D 123, 155; Mubanga D 79,
98, 101, 125-135),

(b) Oral advice was given to Security Service staff prior to deployment to
Guantanamo Bay, including guidance that interviews must be free from
pressure or coercion, must not include inhuman or degrading {reatment, and
that staff should withdraw if they considered the interview regime to be
unacceptably harsh or unreasonable. No admissions are made as to whether
such advice was given to officers who interrogated the Claimants (Al RawiD

97; Belmar D 122; Deghayes D 90; Mohamed D 138; Mubanga D 113)

(1) That Security Services officers informed detainees that it would be in their
best interests to co-operate with US authorities and / or that the Security
Services could / would / might be able to assist them (I.g. Belmar D 35, 87 ;
Deghayes D 34, 36, 47, 49; Begg D 39.6-39.8, 61; Mohamed D 46, 49)

Legal issues common to all claims

7.

The Defendants have raised the following legal issues in respect of each of the

Claimants’ claims:

(a) Whether the Foreign and Commonwealth Office and the Home Office are
vicariously liable for the conduct of the Security Services, their servants or

agents (PC 9; Al Rawi D 9; Mohamed PC 4; Mohamed D &; Mubanga PC §;
Mubanga D 6);

(b) Whether the Claimants’ detention at Guantanamo Bay and elsewhere was
unlawful. The Defendants have denied that the Claimants’ detention was
unlawful under the law of England and Wales and aver that the proper law to
determine lawfulness is that of the place of alleged detention or other il
treatment and / or that of the United States (Al Rawi D 109-112; Mohamed D
114-117; Mubanga D 72- -75). The Claimants aver that such conduct is

unlawful under the law of England and Wales and that any other applicable

7
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laws are to be presumed to be to the same effect. For this purpose they rely
on the law of all civilised nations and the high status of the prohibitions on
arbitrary detention and torture (FI 6-7);

(c) Whether the effect of the State Tmmunity Act 1978 is to render the alleged
acts of agents of the United States, Zambia, The Gambia, Pakistan, Morocco
and / or Afghanistan non-justiciable (D 113; Mohamed‘D 118; Mubanga D
76-77);

(d) Whether the tort of torture is known to or should be recognised by English

law (PC 388-389; Al Rawi D 137; Mohamed PC 96-98; Mubanga PC 39-40;
Mohamed D 120; Mubanga D 115).

(e) Whether a duty of care was owed by the Defendants to the Claimants, arising
ot of an assumption of responsibility on the part of the Defendants (PC 406~
407, 428-429, 445-446, 463-464; Mohamed PC 105-106; Mubanga PC 33-
35: D 151; Deghayes D 163-164; Begg D 215-216; Belmar D 199-200;
Mohamed I 160; Mubanga D 99, 121, 124).

(f) Whether the actions of Security Services officers constituted misfeasance in

" public office in that they were carried out with the intention of injuring the

Claimants or with reckless indifference to the injury that they were suffering

as well as to the unlawfulness of their actions (Al Rawi PC 410-416, 432433

449-450, 467-468; Mohamed PC 108-113; Mubanga PC 31-32; Al Rawi D

156-160; Deghayes D 169-175; Belmar D 204-209; Begg D 165-170C;
Mohamed D 165-169; Mubanga D 65-97). -

Specific issues arising in the individual claims

8.

Attached as Schedules hereto are suminaries of the admitted direct contact by
British officials with the Claimants whilst they were being unlawfully detained
(Schedule A) and the principal factual issues arising in the individual claims
before the Couzt and raised by the individual defences served by the Defendants
(Schedules B-G).



Schedule A ~ Admiited Attendance of the Security Services at the

interrogation of the Claimants

The Defendants admit attending and/or participating in the interrogation of each

of the Claimants at Guantanamo Bay and elsewhere, In particular:

1. It is admitted that the Security Services attended and/or participated in the
inferrogation of Mr Al Rawi on five occasions during his detention at
Guantanamo Bay (D 56(1), (3)):

GTMO Present . D

26 April 2003 9305 56(1)
3276 (observing) . 56(3)

9 Sept 2003 4166 “Alex” 56(1)

3 occasions 4708 “Matt” 56(1)

5-8 February 702 “Martin”

2. It is admitted that the Security Services attended and/or participated in the
interrogation of Mr Bl Bamna on one occasion during his detention at
Guantanamo Bay (D 56(2), (3)).

GTMO Present D
26 Aprii 2003 9305 56(2)
3276 (observing) 56(3)

3. It is admitted that the Security Services attended and/or participated in the
interrogation of Mr Belmar on three occasions during his detention in Pakistan
(Bebmar D 29), on seven occasions during his detention in Afghanistan
(Belmar D 56), and on five occasions during his detention at Guantanamo Bay

(Belmar D 85), as well as there having been five “welfare visits” CBelmar D
74)




Karachi Present D
1 March 02 3132 “Andrew” 29
4708 “Magt”
2 March 02 3132 “Andrew” 29
4708 “Matt”
4 March 02 3132 “Andrew” 29
4708 “Matt”
Bagram
22 June 2002 702 “Martin™ 56
3137 “Paui”
24 June 2002 702 “Martin” 56
3137 “Paul”
25 June 2002 702 “Martin® 56
3137 “Pani”
25 Tune 2002 702 *Martin® 56(1)
3137 “Paul”
4 July 2002 One or more Security Services “officers 56(2)
currently unknown
10 July 2002 3132 “Andrew” 56(3)
10 July 2002 3132 “Andrew” 56(3)
GTMO
13/14 Nov 2002 Welfare Visitor 4 73
' Welfare Visitor 3
Unidentified Security Services officers
13/14 Nov 2002 3524 “Tan® 73, 85(1)
3276 *“Lucy”
Welfare Visitor 3
35 Apiil 03 Wetfare Visitor 4 74
Unidentified Security Services officer
25 April 03 9305 85(2)
3276 “Lucy”
28 April 03 9305 85(3)
' 3276 “Lucy” (observing) '
9 Sepf 03 Welfare Visitor 4 74
Unidentified Security Services officer
1G Sept 03 3276 “Lucy” 85(4)
4186
9 Feb 04 4708 85(5)
792
10
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8 Mar 04 Welfare Visitor 4 ) 74
S Official

16 July 04 Welfare Visitor 4 : 74
US official

306t 04 Vielfare Visitor 4 : 74
US official

4. It is admitted that the Security Services interrogated Mr Deghayes on one
occasion during his detention in Islamabad (Deghayes 1 25), on four
occasions during his detention in Afghanistan (Deghayes D 39), and on one

occasion during his detention at Guantamo Bay (Deghayes 55).

Islamabad Present D

22 May 62 3132 “Andrew™ 25
Jointly with foreign Government officials

Bagram

24 June 2002 3137 39(13
702

3 huly 2002 3132 “Jeff” 39(2)

6 July 2002 9164 39(3)

12 July 2002 3132 39(4)

GTMO

28 April 2003 5305 ' 35
3276
Foreign government official

5. It is admitted that the Security Services inteirogated Mr Begg on one occasion
during his detention in Pakistan (Begg D 39), on one'occasion during his
detention in Afghanistan (Begg D 56), and on two occasions at Guantanamo
Bay (Begg DD 78, 83, 103). |

Pakistan Present D
15 Feb 02 19030 “Tan” ' 39

5066 “Louise”

Foreign government officials

| Kandahar
10 March 2002 3132 *Andrew” _ 56
4708 “Mat”

11



11 March 2002 3132 “Andrew” 58
4708 “Matt”

13 March Not stated 70

possibly others

between 10-11 March

Bagram

3-11 huly Series of interviews 64, 70 ‘

GTMO

September 2003 Welfare Visitor 4 “Martin” 72

25 April 2003 “Welfare Visitor 4 “Martin® 74

25 April 2003 9305 “Jolm” 178
3276 Lucy”

i Welfare Visitor 4 “Martin”

26 April 2003 9305 “Joln™ 78
3276 Lucy”

‘ Weifare Visitor 4 “Martin”

27 April 2003 9305 “John” 78
3276 Lucy”

8 September 2003 Welfare Visitor 4 “Martin” 942

9 September 2003 3276 “Lucy” 103.
4166 “Alex”

March 2003 Welfare Visitor 4 “Martin” 105.

§ February 2004 4798 “Matt® 109
Another Security Services officer (unstated)

16 July 2004 . Welfare Visitor 4 “Martin™ 73,117

3 Gctober 2004 Welfare Visitor 4 “Martin® 121
US officials

o

6. It is admitted that the Security Services interrogated Mr Mohamed on one
occasion during his detention in Pakistan (Mohamed D 41-2), as well as there

having been two “welfare visits” (Mohamed D 97-98).

Pakistan Present D.

{17 May 2002 3132 “Tolw” 43

Foreign government officials 44

| 25 July 2008 Welfare Officer 5 97
Welfare Officer 6

14 February 2009 - Welfare Officer 7 98

12
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Welfare Officer 9

Welfare Officer 8 : J ]

7. It is admitted that the Security Services interrogated My Mubanga on two
occasions during his detention in Zambia (Mubanga D 27), and on seven

occasions during his detention at Guantanamo Bay (Mubanga D 37), as well

as there having been seven “welfare visits™ (Mubanga D 43, 46, 1233,

13

Zambia Present D
23 March 2002 233 “Tony” 27,62
Jointly with foreign government officials 29
24 Mareh 5603 233 “ony” ' 27, 3031, 62
Tomntly with foreign government officials 28
GTMO
30 May 2002 Welfare Visitor 3 43, 44
9032 37D
4166
31 May 2002 9032 “Mark” 37(2)
Jointly with US official
2 June 2002 9032 “Mark> 37(2)
Jointly with US official
| 13 November 2002 Welfare Visitor 3 143,45
3276 37(3), 39
3524
25 Apri] 2003 Welfare Officer 4 46, 47
Unidentified Security Services officer
26 April 2003 9305 “John™ 37(4)
' Observed by 3276
9 September 2003 Welfare Officer 4 46, 48
Unidentified Security Services officer
11 September 2003 3276 37(5)
4166
12 September 2003 3276 37(5)
) 4166
8 March 2004 Welfare Officer 4 46, 49
US official
| 16 July 2004 Welfare Officer 4 46, 50
\ US official
3 October 2004 Welfare Officer 4 46, 52

38



Schedule B - Bisher Al Rawi and Jamil Il Banna

Ry a combination. of non-admissions and denials the Defendants have raised issues in
respect of the following matters in their defence to Mr Al Rawi and Mr El Banna’s

claims:

1. The precise nature of Mr Al Rawi’s relationship with the Security Services
prior to his detention (PC 18-21; Al Rawi D 22). The Defendants have, in
particular, made no admissions as to Mr Al Rawi’s assertion that he met with
Mr Abu Qatada at the request of the Security Services and the specific
assurances of protection which Mr Al Rawi alleges he received from Security

Services officers and a Security Services lawyer (PC 21.4; Al Rawi D 22);

9. The precise nature of Mr El Banna’s relationship with the Security Services
prior to his detention. The Defendants have denied that they sought recruit
Mr El Banna at a meeting at his home on 31% October 2002 or anything in the
nature of an assurance was made to Mr El Banna, (PC 25-29; Al Rawi D 23-
25). The nature of any assurance given to Mr El Banna by the Security
Services (Al Rawi D 148,15 1)

3. The circumstances in which one of Mr Al Rawi and Mr FI Banna’s travelling
companions came not to travel and the precise nature of exchanges which took.
place between him and United Kingdom officials prior to his taking this
decision. The Defendants have made no admissions in this regard (PC 39; Al
Rawi D32); |

4. The correct inference to draw from the telegram sent by the Security Services
to United States authorities on 1 November 2002 and whether the same
contained false and misleading staterents in respect of Mr Al Rawi and Mr El
Ranna as alleged by them but denied by the Defendants (PC 42-43; Al Rawi D
36} '

5. Whether the subsequent telegrams sent by the Security Services to United

States authorities were similarly false and misleading (as alleged by them but

14
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10.

11.

denied by the Defendants) and whether and when the Security Services
informed United States authorities that the item referred to in their telegram of
1 November 2002 could “no Torger be considered to be suspicious” (PC 44-
49; D 38-41);

. Whether the Security Services directly facilitated the original detention of M

Al Rawi and Mr FEl Bamna by providing United States agencies with
mformation about their travel itineraries or alternatively were reckless or
negligent in respect thereof (PC 41-45, 47, 48, 81, 382; Al Rawi D 34-3, 46,
61, 115, 124(10)). (PC 41, 55-58, 80.1(h); D 30(5), 45, 60(3), 66).

Whether the Security Services and United States authorities discussed the
possibility of the Foreign and Commonweslih Office providing some form of
consular protection to Mr Al Rawi and Mr K] Banna. This alleged by the
Claimants to be the natural inference of the telegram of 8 November 2002 and

6 December 2002 but is denied by the Defendants (PC 50; Al Rawi D 42);

The precise nature of Mr Al Rawi and M El Bamna’s treatment in The
Gambia. The Defendants deny that either man was mistreated in The Gambia
(PC 51-58; Al Rawi D 43-44);

Whether the mndiﬁon Mr Al Rawi and Mr El Banna to Afghanistan was in
any way connected to the arrest and detention in the United Kingdom of Abu
Qatada (PC 64; Al Rawi D 50);

Whether, when and in what terms the Security Services informed United
States authorities of the nature of their relationship with Mr Al Rawi (PC 57;
Al Rawi D 47);

The precise circumétanées of Mr Al Rawi’s and Mr E] Banna’s rendition to
Afghanistan, and the nature of thejr treatment while detained there. The
Defendants make no positive case in this régard_ but do not admit the
Claimants’ allegations (PC 60-71; Al Rawi D 50,

15
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12. The precise circumstances of Mr Al Rawi’s aﬁd Mr El Banna’s rendition to
Guantanamo Bay, and the pature of their treatment while detained there.
Again the Defendants make no positive case in this regard but do not admit the

Claimants’ allegations (PC 72-76; Al Rawi D Si).

13. In respect of the alleged facilitation and participation in the interrogation of

Mr Al Rawi and Mr Bl Banna by the Security Services:

(a) The extent of any indirect involvement in the interrogation of either man

by other government authorities in The Gambia or Afghanistan or GTMO

by e.g. the provision of questions. (The Defendants’ dendal is limited to 2
denial of any “comfact” with either man during their detention in
Afghanistan) (PC 79.1 - 79.2; Al Rawi D 55(D)

{b) The precise circumstances of the interrogation of Mr Al Rawi and Mr El
Banna by British authorities at GTMO (PC 79-81, 388-395, D 53, 55-60,
137-147)

(c) Whether during the course of one such interrogation two Security Service
Officers (‘Maxtin’ and ‘Matt’) promised to secure Mr Al Rawt’s release
within a “few months” if he agreed to work for them on release. (PC 80.3;
D 59).

14. The degree to which UK authorities were aware of the unlawful nature of the
detention of Mr Al Rawi and Mr El Banna and of their mistreatment (PC 354-
381; 386-7, 394; Al Rawi D 53, 125-126, 140-144, 86-108)

15. Whether and when the Security Services first informed Ministers about the
full factual background to Mr Al Rawi’s case and, in particular, the nature of
his relationship with the Security Services and whether an unacceptable level

of delay occurred (PC 113; 385.12; Al Rawi D 81, 124(12)).

16. Whether UK. authorities failed to take reasonable and appropriate sieps {0

secure the release of the men including by providing evidence to the US

16
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17.

authorities of the previous contact between the men and the Security Service,
by providing information to the Combatant Status Review Tribunals as
requested by Mr Al Rawi and by the Security Services providing appropriate
information to Ministers and other officials (PC 84-86, 83-86, 88-90, 96-97,
99, 113, 385, 397; Al Rawi D 63, 66, 70, 81, 124, 147)

Whether the wrongful conduct of Brifish authorities caused harm to the men,
and whether had such wrongful conduct not occurred, the men would have
been released at any earlier stage than in fact oceurred or whether they lost the
chance of such release (PC 385.12, 405, 409, 4186, 469-480; Al Rawi D
124(12), 150, 154, 160, 165, 166, 167, 168). |
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Schedule C - Richard Belmar

By a combination of non-admissions and denials the Defendarits have raised issues in

respect of the following matters in their defence to Mr Belmar’s claims:
1. The reason for Mr Belmar's travels to Pakistan and Afghanistan from about
June 2001 and the nature of his activities in those countries until his arrest in

Pakistan on or about 7 February 2002 (PC 120-129; Belmar D 23).

2. ‘The precise nature of the interrogation and treatment of Mr Belmar in Pakistan

(PC 130-134; D 27-43). In particular, in respect of the interrogation of Mr

Belmar by members of the Security Services in Pakistan:

() The frequency and number of such interrogations (PC 134.1; Belmar D
32);

(b) What was said to Mr Belmar by British officials and m particular the
nature of assurances and/or promises made to Mr Belmar in the course
of the interrogations by Security Services officers (PC 134.4, 134.5,
134.13; Belmar D 34, 35, 42) and the nature of threats made to Mr
Belmar that he would be taken to Jordan or Egypt if bhe did not co-
operate (which is not admitied but not denied) (PC 134.10-14, D 41).

(c) The degree to which the Security Service knew or ought to have
known of the unlawful nature of the detention and of the mistreatment
of Mr Belmar (PC 421.1, 4214, 422, 429.3, 432, D 162-168, 200, 205,
208).

3. Whether the level of assistance afforded by the Defendants to Mr Belmar
during his detention in Pakistan constituted an effective ‘abandonment’ of Mr
. Belmar, which exposed him to arbitrary detention and mistreatment amounting

to torfure, and was unlawful (PC 135, Belmar D 44).
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10.

11

Whether Mr Belmar had been assessed by the FBI to be suitable for release,
and whether this assessment was overruled by the Security Services (PC

134.6, 136-137; Belmar D 36, 45-47).

The precise circumstances of Mr Belmar’s rendition to Afghanistan and the
nature of his treatment while detained there. Mr Belmar’s allegations in this

regard are not admitted by the Defendants (PC 139-155; Belmar D 49-54).

The precise nature of the Security Services’ interrogations of Mr Belmar at
Bagram (PC 157; Belmar D56-68).

The degree to which the Security Service knew or ought to have known of the
unlawful nature of the detention and of the mistreatment of Mr Belmar in
Afghanistan (PC 421.2, 421 4, 422, 429.3, 432, D 169-176, 200, 204, 208).

The precise circumstances of Mr Belmar’s rendition to (Guantanamo Bay, the
nature of his {reatment while detained there, and the nature of his relaﬁdnship
with representatives of the Foreign Office while detained there (PC 158-169;
Belmar D 69-84),

The precise nature of Mr Belmar’s interrogations by the Security Services
while detained in Guantanamo Bay and whether he was given an assurance by
them (PC 170; BelmarD 85-89).

The degree to which the Security Service knew or ought to have known of the
unlawful nature of the detention and of the mistreatment of Mr Belmar in
Afgbanistan (PC 354-381, 421.3, 421 .4, 422, 429.3, 432, D 71, 111-133, 177-
183, 200, 204, 208).

Whether the Security Services deliberately intervened to frustrate the release
of Mr Belmar from Guantanamo Bay and deliberately or negligently
represented that evidence relied upon by US was reliable, adequate and
'ade@uate and / or UK. authorities failed themselves to take steps to assist My
Belmar (PC 173; Belmar D 91, 201, 426, 430, 432).
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172. The nature of Mr Relmar’s hearing before the CSRT and whether the US

13.

14.

authorities were relying on material suppiied' by the Security Services (PC
174-180; Belmar D 92-98).

Whether any binding contract was entered into between Mr Belmar and the
Security Services; if so, whether the Security Services breached this contract;
and if so, whether these breaches of contract caused Mr Belmar to be detained
for a longer period of time than he would otherwise have been (PC 424-427,
Belmar D 186-198).

Whether the wrongful conduct of British authorities caused harm to Mr
Belmar, and whether had such wrongful conduct not occurted, Mr Belmar
would have been released at any carlier stage than in fact occurred or whether
they lost the chance of such release (PC 427, 431, 432-3, 469-480; Belmar D
197, 198, 202, 209, 211-212, 211-216).
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Schedule D — Omar Deghayes

By a combination of non-admissions and denials the Defendants have raised issues in

respect of the following matters in their defence to Mz.Deghayes’ claims:

1. The precise circumstances of the arrest of Mr Deghayes in Pakistan, and his

treatment while detained there (PC 192-193, 195-196; Deghayes D 23-24, 29).

2. The precise circumstances and nature of the interrogation of Mr Deghayes by
the Security Services during his detention in Pakistan (PC 194, 197-206;
Deghayes D 25-28, 30-37).

3. The degree to which the Security Service knew or ought to have known of the
unlawful nature of the detention and of the mistreatment of Mr Belmar in
Pakistan (PC 354-381, 438, 446, Deghayes D 79-101, 140-149, 166, 169).

4. The precise circumstances of Mr Deghayes’ rendition to Afghanistan, and the
nature of his treatment while detained there, The Defendants make no positive
case in this regard but do not admit the Claimants’ allegations (PC 207-210;
Deghayes D 38).

5. The degree to which the Security Service knew or ought to have known of the
unlawful natare of the detention and of the mistreatment of Mr Degbayes in
Afghanistan (PC 354-381, 438, 446, 449; Deghayes D 79-101, 140-149, 166,
169)

6. The precise circumstances of My Deghayes® interrogation by the Security
Services while detained in Afgabnistan (PC 211-219; Deghayes I 39-51).

7. The degree to which the detention and interrogation of Mr Deghayes by other
agencies in Pakistan and Afghanistan was based on material supplied by the
Security Services wrongiully and / or withowt adequate assurances (PC 198,
435, 438, 446, 449; Deghayes D 19, 31)



8.

5.

The precise circumstances of Mr Deghayes” rendition to Guantanamo Bay and

the nature of his treatment while detained theré. Save that it is denied that Mr

Deghayes® eye was injured at Guantanamo Bay, the Defendants make no

positive case in this regard, but do not admit the Claimants’ allegations (PC

220-223; Deghayes D 52-54),
In respect of Mr Deghayes’ interrogation while detained at Guantanamo Bay:

(a) The number of occasions on which Mr Deghayes was interrogated by
the Security Services while detained at Guantanamo Bay, and the

nature of such interrogations; (PC 224; Deghayes D) 55-57).

(b) Whether and to what extent the Security Services provided information
to the United States and / or Libyan authorities, wrongfully and / or
without adequate assurances, that was used- in connection with
interrogations of Mr Deghayes by those authorities and as a basis for

detaining him (PC 225-228, 435; Deghayes D 58-61, 118).

(¢} The degree to which the Security Service knew or ought to have
known of the unlawful nature of the detention and the mistreatment of
Mr Deghayes (PC 216, 354—?381, 436, 438, 446, 449; Deghayes D 41,
45-49, 79-101, 126, 166, 169)

10. Whether, the US authorityes relied upon a video tape passed to them by or at

11.

the instigation of the Security Services and failed to provide information to the
US authorities which was capable of undermining the alleged connection
between Mr Deghayes and persons portrayed in the video (PC 230; Deghayes
D 62, 120, 435).

Whether there was any failure on the part of the Security Services to provide
the Foreign Office and/or the Home Office with relevant and accurate
information gﬂating to the detention and interrogation of Mr Deghayes, and/or

whether the Foreign Office and/or Home Office failed to take any adequate
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12.

13.

14.

steps to investigate such matters (PC 240, 243, 443, 445-447; Deghayes D 72,
78, 151-162). .

Whether British authorities failed to take other reasonable steps to assist Mr
Deghayes (PC 435, 443 Deghayes D 151-162, 163-166).

Whether any binding contract was entered info between Mr Deghayes and the
Security Services; if so, whether the Security Services breached this contract;
and if so, whether these breaches of confract caused Mr Deghayes to be
detained for a longer period of time than he would otherwise have been (PC
441-444; Deghayes D 151-162).

Whether the wrongful conduct of British authorities caused harm to Mr
Deghayes, and whether had such wrongful conduct not occurred, Mr
Deghayes would have been released at any earlier stage than in fact occurred
or whether they lost the chance of such release (PC 439, 444, 448, 449-450,
469-480; Deghayes D 149, 162, 167, 175, 176-180).
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Schedule E — Moazzem Begg

By a combination of non-admissions and denials the Défendants have raised issues in

respect of the following matters in their defence to Mr Begg’s claims:

. The precise nature of Mr Begg’s involvement with training camps in

Afghanistan between about 1993 and 1998 (PC 245-247; Begg D 21-23).

. Whether and to what extent the Security Services participated in and/or
facilitated the original detention of Mr Begg in Istmabad in about February
2002 (PC 267; Begg D 35-36).

. The nature of Mr Begg’s treatment during his detention in Pakistamn. (PC 268-
275; Begg D 38).

. The precise circumstances relating to Mr Begg’s interrogation in Pakistan by
the Security Services, and in particular, (2} whether Mr Begg was threatened
in the manner pleaded in PC 276.7 (Begg D 39.6); whether any assurances
were made to Mr Begg in the form pleaded in PC 276.9 (Begg D 39.8).

_ Whether the level of assistance afforded by the Defendants to Mr Begg during

his detention in Pakistan constituted an effective “abandonment’ of him, which

exposed him to arbitrary detention and mistreatment amounting o torture, and
was unlawful (PC 279; Begg D> 42).

. The precise circumstances of Mr Begg’s rendition to Afghanistan and the

natire of his treatment while detained there (PC 282-290; Begg D 46-54).

. The precise circumstances of Mr Begg’s interrogation by the Security Services
in Afghanistan, including in particular (a) the nature of the complaints made
by Mr Begg to the Security Services about the treatment he had received in
Afghanistan, and (b) whether Mr Begg alleged on one or more occasions that

he had been tortured (PC 291-297; Begg D 55-70).
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8. The precise circumstances of Mr Begg's i“enélitiorz to Guantanamo Bay, and

the nature of his treatment while detained there (PC 298-303; Begg D 71-77).

9. With regard to the role of the Defendants in Mr Begg’s detention at
Guantanamo Bay:

(a) The precise circumstances of the meetings between Mr Begg and
members of the Security Services and Foreign Office, and in particular
the nature of the complaints made by Mr Begg during such meetings
(PC 304, 309-313, 317, 324, 460; Begg D 78-88, 93-105, 109-113,
121-125, 213).

(b} Whether the intended pfosecutiosl of Mr Begg by the United States
authorities was supporied by the Foreign Office (PL 306; Begg D 90),

(c) Whether Security Services intervened to frustrate release of Mr Begg
(PC 316; Begg D 108).

(d) Whether and to what extent the Security Services collaborated with the
United States authorities in relation to the interrogations of Mr Begg,
by requesting or instigating such interrogations, and/or by supplying
information upon which such interrogations were based (PC 331-334:
Begg D 133-136).

10. The degree to which the British authorities knew or ought to have known of
the unlawful nature and of the detention of Mr Begg and of the mistreatment
of him (PC 354-81, 413-415, 457, Begg D 156-178, 192, 221-224)

11. Whether the British authorities by their acts of omissions were complicit in the
continuing detention of Mr Begg, and whether they took reasonable steps to

secuze his release (PC 306-307, 316, 455, 458-460, 463, 465; Begg D 90-91,
108, 190, 213, 217)
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12. Whether the wrongful conduct of British authorities caused harm to Mr Begg,
and whether had such wrongful conduct not occurred, Mr Begg would have

been released at any earlier stage than in fact oceurred or whether they lost the

chance of such release (Mohamed PC 114-116; Mohamed D 172).
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Schedule ¥~ Binyam Mohamed

By a combination of non-admissions and denials the Defendants have raised issues in

respect of the following matters in their defence to Mr Mohammed’s claims:

1. The natwre and purpose of Mr Mohamed’s activities in Pakistan and
Afghanistan prior to his detention on 3 April 2002, and the reason for his
travels (Mohamed PC 12-13; Mohamed D 21).

2. The precise circumstances of Mr Mohamed’s original detention in Pakistan,
the nature of his treatment while detained there, and whether such detention

was unlawful (Mohamed PC 14-22; Mohamed D 22-28).

3. Whether and to what extent the Security Services knew about the conditions in
which Mr Mohamed was being held and the mistreatment suffered by Mr
Mohamed during his detention in Pakistan (Moharmed PC 26-27, 31, 34, 47.1-
47.2; Mohamed D 27, 33-34, 38, 43-44, 54),

4. The precise circumstances relating to Mr Mohamed’s interro gation in Pakistan
by the Security Services, and in particular, (a) whether Mr Mohamed was
threatened in the manner pleaded in Mohamed PC 36-37, 40, 47.3 (Mohamed
D 45, 48, 53); aﬁd (b) whether Mr Mohamed asked to see a lawyer, Mohamed
PC 39 (Mohamed D 47).

5. .The precise circumstances of Mr Mohamed’s rendition to Morocco, the-
lawfulness of his rendition and subsequent detention and the nature of his
treatment while detained there. The Defendants make no positive case in this
regard, but do not admit Mr Mohamed’s allegations (Mohamed PC 48-51;
Mohamed D 59).

6. With regard to the involvement of the Security Services in the interro gation of

M Mohamed in Morocco:



(a) Whether and to what extent the Security Services knew about Mr
Mohamed’s detention in Morocco (Mdhamed PC 54; Mohamed D 61),
the mistreatment suffered by Mr Mohamed during his detention and in
particular whether the Security Service knew or suspected that Mr
Mohamed was being tortured or that there was a risk that he would be
tortured (Mohamed PC 55, 59, 71.1; Mohamed D 62, 66-67, 81).

(v} The precise nature of the Security Services® participation in and/or
facilitation of the interrogation of Mr Mohamed (Mohamed PC 65-70,
71.2-71.5; Mohamed D 71-80, 83-84).

. The precise circumstances of Mr Mohamed’s rendition to and detention in

Afghanistan, the lawfulness of these actions and the nature of Mr Mohamed’s
trealment while detained there, including whether and to what extent the
interrogations of Mr Mohamed duoring his detention in Afghanistan were based
on information and questions supplied to the United States authorities by the
Security Services (Mohamed PC 47.7, 72-78; Mohamed D 58, 87-89).

. Whether and to what extent the inferrogations of Mr Mohamed during his
detention at Guantanamo Bay were based on information and question
supplied to the United States authorities by the Security Services (Mohamed
PC 80; Mohamed D 91).

., Whether the wrongful conduct of British authorities caused harm to Mr

Mohamed, and whether had such wrongful conduct not occurred, My
Mohamed would have been released at any earlier stage than in fact occurred
or whether he lost the chance of such release (eg. Mohamed PC 82-83, 101;
Mohamed D 98, 101).
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Schedule G - Martin Mubanga

By a combination of non-admissions and denials the Defendants have raised issues in

respect of the following matters in their defence to Mr Mubanga’s claims:

1. The nature and purpose of Mr Mubanga’s activities in Pakistan and
Afghanistan between October 2000 and F ebruary 2002 and the reasons for his
fravels (Mubanga PC 10-14; Mubanga D 18-22).

2. The precise circumstances of Mr Mubanga’s original detention in Zambia, the
lawfulness of that detention and the nature of Mr Mubanga’s treatment while
in detention (Mubanga PC15-17; Mubanga D 23-25, 78~85).v

3. The precise circumstances of the interrogations of My Mubanga in Zambia, in

particular by the Security Services (Mubanga PC 17-21; Mubanga D 26-33).

4. The precise circumstances of Mr Mubanga’s rendition to Guantanamo Bay
and the nature of his treatment while detained there. The Defendants do not
make any positive case in this regaxd but broadly do not admit Mz Mubanga’s

+ allegations (Mubanga PC 22-24; Mubanga D 34.35),

5. The precise circumstances of Mr Mubahga’s interrogations both by US
officials and by the Security Service (Mubanga PC 25-26; Mubanga D 36-54),

6. Whether the wrongful conduct of British authorities caused harm to Mr
Mubanga, and whether had such wrongful conduct not occurred, Mr Mubanga
would have been released at any earlier stage than in fact occurred or whether

they lost the chance of such release {eg. Mubanga PC 44; Mubanga D 124-
125). |
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Leigh Day & Co
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By email and DX

23 December 2009

Dear Sirs

Bisher at Rawi and others v Security Service and others
Martin Mubanga v Security Service and others
Binyam WMohamed v Security Service and others

Dear Sirs,
Lisf of issues

Please find herewith the Defendants’ prefiminary comments on the Claimants' list of issues.
Bearing in mind the obsarvations of Mr Justice Siiber at the CMC on 14 Dacember 2008, that
the Defendants' comments should represent annotations on the Claimants' draft, you will find
herewith:

T. A general section, covering the legal issues, agreed facts and general factual
matters in issue applicable to all claims, where the Defendants’ comments appearin

~ ‘'tracked changes' form:

2, Schedule A] covering the agreed attendances by the Security Service at interviews of
the Claimanis and visits by FCO Welfare Visitors, where again the Defendants’
comments appear in ‘tracked changes’ form:

3. Schedules B - G, dealing with the matters in issue for the individual Claimants, where
the Defendanis have created a table and put their suggested alternative wording in

the right hand column of the table, against the Claimants' wording in the feft hand
column,

I trust that the format of the attachmenis makes clear where there are matters between the
parties in terms of what the issue actually is and/or how the issues have been drafted by the
Claimants, There are also a number of instances where the Defendants have raised issues
that the Claimanis’ draft did not raise (for example. Remedies in each of Schedules B — ()

David Qunleavy — Head of Division '
Dawvid Mackie - Teamn Leader "L »\CEE
o goneny
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ft may be helpful to make a few observations about the Deféndants’ general approach.

Firstly, we would remind vou of paragraph 3 of the Open Defences served on you, and the
caveat set out therein that, to avoid real harm to the public inferest, a further Defence pleads
more fully to the Particulars of Claim. The annotations set out in the attached document,
commenting on your list of issues, are necessarily based entirely on the Open Defences, but
this is without prejudice to any material contained in the further Defences.

Secondly, the Defendants take the view that matters are in issue whether they have been not
admitted, denied, or averred in the Open Defences - they are matters in issue as the
Claimants' case is not accepted. The Defendants' comments seek to remove the distinctions
made in the Claimants' draft in this regard.

Thirdly, # is obvious that the Claimants’ Replies may have a considerable impact on the
number and range of the matters in issue. For exampie, some matters have been averred in
the Open Defences and the Defendants do not yet know whether they or any of them will be

disputed, For present purposes, the Defendants have assumed that most such matters are in
1ssue.

Finally, the Defendants fegard their comments at this stage as a preliminary set of
observations on the Claimanls' draft, and once you have had the opportunity to consider and
respond to the Defendanis' comments, we expect that the draft will come back to the
Defendants for further consideration in the light of your respenses. For the reasons | have
mentioned, it may he best for this to follaw service of the Replies.

[ look forward to hearing fram you with your further commenis.
Yours faithfully

,f/\fé\,{mﬁ:&?r“?“

Jeanna Bateman
For the Treasury Soficitor
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extraordinary rendition, torture and inhuman and degrading treatment, They further atlege

that the Defendants are liable 1o them in damages at common law and (s far as the first



two Claimants are concerned) under the Hurman Rights Act 1998 in respect of their
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| 202 .
8 Mar 04 Welfare Visitor 4 i 74
US Official ‘ .'
16 July 04 Wé!far_c Visitor ¢ 174
1 1S afficial,
Y04 Welfare Visitor 4 74
% E US official ;
4, Ahe Security Sorvige interviewed Mr Deghayos on one occasion during his detention in L paetede s it v

¢ Deleted) Sorvices ngroyan

ol

lslamabad (Deghayes D 23), on four occasions during his detention in Afghanistan
(Deghaves T 39). and on one occasion during his detention at Guantapamo Bay

{Deghayes 35),

isiamahad Present R
22 May 02 V3132 “Andrew” 25
i lointly with foreign Gavernment officials

Bagram

24 June 02 3137 ETON
702

al 3132 ~Andrewy” |

3 July 2002 £ 39(2)

9164 “Feff !
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76 July 2003 REE T39(3)
T2 Ty 3662 3152 sET T
CTMG T
: 28 April 2003 9305 “—Mmﬁhmwﬁmﬂuw-_:'{:iﬁ“m T A‘
; 3276 : 5
: Foreign government olficial ; *i
L = i —
s Jhe Security Seyvice interviewed My Begg on one sceasion during his detention in ) l::::z ;l::d‘
I Pakistar (Begg D 39), during his detention in Afshanistan (Begg D 36), and on two T,‘f“na””“’l"c‘*:“q'
occasicns at Gﬁantanamo Bay (Begg D 78, 83. 103), l ”
Pakistan } Present T {n T
5feb oz L030 “lan™ 3t
] 3666 “Louise™
Foreign government officials
Randaar : B
10 March 2002 3132 “Andrew® a6
4708 “Mai"
1T March 2002 3132 “Andrew™ 38
| 4708 “Matt”
13 March and 1 Not stated T
possibly others
| between 10-11 March
; Bﬁgrz;m T
311 July i Series of interviews 64,70
GTMC _ -
- Seplember 2003 | Welfare Visitor 4. TR Deleteet iy
("5 April 2003 Welfare Visitor 4. {73 Deleted:
{35 Aprii 2007 3305 “John” 7
3276 " Lucy
L Welfare Visitor 4, 1 Deleted: “Manii*
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Y26 April 2003 19303 “Ighn” 78
3276 “Lucy :
f Welfare Visisor 4 Peteted: "aticon”
37 Aprii 3003 9305 John” - T 7 B
3276 “Lucy
|, 8 September 2003 | Welfare Visttor 4. 942 peleteds "M~
5 Septembar 2003 13276 “Tucy” 103 R
4166 Alex™
9 September 2003 | Welfare Visior . 93, 109 pelated: i
Mzrch 2003 Welfare Visitor 4. 105 RekSeds "Maniy®
i 0 February 2004 4798 “Mart” {09
I Anather Security;Service officer{unstated) ]
16 July 3004 Welfure Visior 4. - 75,117
3 October 2004 Welfare Visitor 4. 121 et
LIS officials | J 1
6. "_F“hl_g; Security Servijce inlerviewed Mr Mohamed on one accasion during his detention in - z:::: .k b pimited s e
Pakistan {Mchamed D 41-2}. as well as there having been two “welfare visits™ {Mohamed ——
D 97-98).
. Pakistan | Present D B
{77 May 2002 3732 Soha”
. Fareign Government officials . 44
125 Tuly 2008 Welfare Yisilor 5 97 -
Welfare Vigitor, 6
{14 February 2009 Welfare Vistwo, 7 i 98

Welfare Visiioy, §

Welfare Visitor ¢

?

1. JLhe Securiey §

e

2EIVige Herviow

3
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Zambia (Mubanga D 27). and o0 seven occasions during his detention at Guantanamo
Bay (Mubanga D 37, as welf ag there having heen seven “wellare visitg (Mubanga D 43,
46.123),

Z:{m bin P l"(‘.ﬁ(:.‘_;'.l—{'wﬁm- '"'"_‘“"'_“""“"‘"'—“_“"‘“‘”‘“"']I'"Z_"_"""”“'W—%'-““]
23 March 2002 T2 oy T LIgy T {
Avintly with forefgn government officials } 39 i
M March 2002 TR oy "W“""W'"““"MM'"'AM““{ﬁﬁEETEWW'ﬁ
Joinily with foreign government officials 29
EIMO N — T ——— R
30 May 2002 ! Welfare Visitor 3 T 43,4:; T
9032 | 3708
; 4166 7
{737 May 2002 9033 "M arie TR
Jointly with US official .
2 June 2002 S Le03R Mark T T B Y T S —
Jointly with US official L
L3 Movember 2002 | Welfare Visar 3 RS
3276 373039
13524 ]
amp;aw—‘“*“— W"‘""-—ﬁ" T A647 T s .Deie@: Oftecer
] | Unidemified Security officer
26 April 2003 9303 “John" I I 7 T — T
Observed by 3276 I
9 Seprember 2003 | ' Weifare N ity 4 ) R T E—
Unidentified Security Service officer : j
tl September 2063 | 3276 37(3) |
1166
2 September 2003 3276 T 37(3“3_“ ''''' T
. S - — I e}
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4166 T T

;,5 March 2004

US official i

I? 16 July 2004

|

“i\/eifar'r:_.‘?:’fiﬁgé},g;; 4

| US official l

 Wellare Siniter 4

Welfareyiniiy d 146,49

l‘ 3 October 2004
A
H

Deleted: OMmcer
Deleted: {{Fzer

Dajeted: (ffieer
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The

I

NI
|

jrequest of  the
| Services and the specific

i Services

Schedule B ~ Bisher Al Rawi and Jamil £ Banna

following matters are in issue belween the Claimans and the Defendants:

Rawi’s relationship with the
Security Services prior to.
+ his detention (PC 18.27: Al
Rawij D 223, The -
Defendants have, in
particular, made no’
admissions as o My Al
Rawi’s assertion that he met ]
with Mr Abu Qatada at the
Security |

assurances  of  protection |
which Mr Al Rawi aileges
he received from Security -
officers and g
Security  Services lawyey
(PC214; Al Rawi D 22y,

T preciss mature ST R
Banna’s relationship with
the Security Services prior

to his detention. The
Defendants have denjed that
they sought to recruit My El
Banna at a meeting at his
home on 31" Octobes 2002
oranything in the nature of
an assurance was made 1o

Mr EI Banna, (PC 25.29: A1
Rawi D 23-25). The nature
of any assurance given o

Mr El Banna by the Security

uiubabudied ---—-T~__.,,,,'___ﬁ__..uﬁ_..__.
The precise nature of Mr A o

Services,

S

I

>}

ka2

[R]

L

et o

S —_— _
Whether Mr AJ Rawi has ev

Whether Mr Ef Banpa has ever been involved in

e

Whether those items gave cause for concern:
e 220 TUINS gave cause for

erbeen involved in
lerrorisim:

The nature of the association between Mr Al Rawi
and Abu Qatada prior to Mr Al Rawi travelling wo
The Gambia in Ocrober 2002:

The nature of Myr Al Rawi’g relationship with the
Security Service before he tavelled to The Gambia
in October 2002,

terrorism:

The nature of the association between Mr Bl Banna
and Aby Qatada prior to Mr Bl Barma wavelling 1o
The Gambia ip October 2002 '
The nature of My EJ Banna’s relationship with the
Security Service before he travelied to The Gambia
in Octaber 2002,

Whether the Note for File recording the meeting of
31 October 2002 between M El Banna and Security
Service officer 9025 and an officer of the
Metropolitan Polics Special Branch is aceurate,

At i

Whether Mr A Rawi and Mr E) Baina had
attempled (o travel to The Gambia in Ociober 2002;
What items were found in the hlack rucksack

=

i

|

|

elonging (o Mr Al Rawi- ;
I

S SV |
|
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1in rel
1tems by the Security Service;

Whether the decision to asrest WMr Al Rawi and Mr
21 Banna under scetion 41 of the Terrorism A ct 2000
was Laken entirety by the Police;

What Mr Al Rawi said ahout the jtems when
guestioned about then:

Whether subsequent Police searches of Mr Al
Rawi's home address that took place folfowing his
arrest revealed further items of interest:

The nature of the examination of the elecironic
device found in Mr Al Rawi's rucksack.

L % N
]
a ng those *

[}

[ The circumstances in which

one of Mr Al Rawi apd Mr
El Banna's travelling
companions came not 1o
travel and the precise nature
of exchanges which ook
place between him and
United Kingdom officials
prior to his taking this
decision. The Defendants
have made no admissions in
this regard.

Who Mr Al Rawi and Mr El Banna's travelling
COMpanions were;

Whether one of Mr Al Rawi and Mr Ei Banna's
travelling companions was ‘Mr Yousil*:

The reason that they/he did not travel;

Whether Mr Yousif was detained by the Police under
the Terrorism Act 2000 as a result of tetling the
Potice that he had checked in a bag for Mr Al Rawi
that contained copies of the Koran and was
subsequently released:

Whether Mr Yousil was warned by an y UK official
not to travel.

The correct inference to
draw from the telegram sent
by the Security Services to
United States authorities on

L I'November 2002 and

whether the same contained
false and misleading
stalement in respect of Mr
Al Rawi and Mr £l Bapna
as alleged by them but
denied by the Defendants

[~

[y

P

Ure

Whether a telegram sent by the Security Service to

US authorities on | November 2002 was an accurate

recording of the Security Service™s CONTEmMporaneous
understanding:

Whether any inference can be draven from the
lelegram; .
Whether the telegram was misleading and whether
the telegram disguised and/or made no reference 1o
cither the fact or substance of contacts between Mr
Al Rawi and Mr £l Banna and the Security Service;
Whether, if so, this was in accordance with standard
procedures designed to ensure compliance with
statutory requirements;

Whether it is the case that such matters are not
routinely shared between intelligence agengies,

Whether the subsequent
telegrams sent by the-
Security Services to United
States authorities weére
similarly faise and
misleading (as alleged by

v

Whether the content of each of the subsequent
telegrams aceurately reflected the relevant Security
Service assessments at the time they were sent;
When the Security Service officers who sent either
of the two telegrams of 4 November 2002 and/or 8

November 2002 were aware of Fart Halstead’s

B

75



\‘ ﬁé@i

them but denied by the
Defendanisy and whether

. and when the Security

Services informed United
States authorities that the
ttem referred to in their
telegram of | November
2002 could “no longer be
considered 1o be
suspicions”,

150

conclusion that the glectronic device that had been
found in Mr Al Rawi's rucksack was not suspicious;
Whether any of the subsequent telegrams were false
or misleading:

Whether the 1elegram of 9 November 2002 was
property to be understood as subject 1o the
prohibition set out in the two earlier telegrams of §
November 2002 and 4 November 2002, i.e. that the
information was “for research and analysis purposes
only and may not be used as the basis of overt,
coverl or executive action.”

O

Whether the Security
Services directly facilitated
the original detention of Mr
Al Rawi and Mr El Banna
by providing United States

1 agencies with information

about their travel itineraries
or alternatively were
reckless or negligent in
respect thereof.

I

3

%)

[

Who was responsible for the original delention of Mr
Al Rawi and Mr El Banna;

If the detention was unlawful, by what law it was so:
Whether the Defendants or any of them were
involved in the detention, and if so. how;

Whether the Security Service provided information
to US agencies about the travel itinerarigs of Mr Al
Rawi and Mr E} Bappa;

Whether the Security Service at all times was acling

~ In pussuance of its duty to safeguard the national

security of the UK.

Whether the Security Service had a duty of care
towards Mr Al Rawi and Mr Bl Banna.

[ s0, what the required standard of care was and
whether the Security Service breached it.

Whether the Security
Services and United States
authorities discussed the
possibitity of the Foreign
and Commoenwealth Office
providing some form of
consular protection to Mr A
Rawi and Mr El Banna. This
alleged by the Claimants 1o
be the natural inference of
the telegram of § November
2002 and 6 December 2002
but is denied by the
Defendants.

o

Whether any inférence can be drawn from'the
telegrams of § November 2002 and 6 December
2602 and if so what;

Whether it is likely that the telegrams of § November |

2002 and 6 Decermber 2002 contain 2 fall record of
the lelephone conversations to which they refer,

The precise nature of Mr Al
Rawi and Mr El Banna's
treatment in The Gambia,
The Defendants deny that

| either man was mistreated in

L

Treatment in The Gambia

(a) How Mr Al Rawi and Mr Ei Banna were treated in

(b} Whether any of Mr Al Rawi's and/or Mr Ei Banna's

The Gambia and by whom:

R

Lo



./? he Gambi.a.

T

treatment amaunted 1o mistreatment, and if so

whether this mistreatment amounted to torture and/for

to the tort of torture (if such a tort exists) and/or to

Lrespass 1o the person:

{c) If'so, whether the Defendants or any of them were
toint ortfeasors, and if 50, how,

e e st et e LGRS

Afphani

9

X

Whether the rendition of Mr
Al Rawi and Mr El Ranna to
Afghanistan was in any way
connected (o the arrest and
detention in the United
Kingdom of Abu Qatada

i

L. ‘Rendition’ of Mr Al Rawi and Mr El Banna o

(1) By whom Mr Al Rawi and Mr E] Banna were
transferred to Afuhanisian:

(b} By whom they were detained during the transfer;

(c) if the transfer was unlawful, by what law it was 503

(d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
involved in the transfer and if se, how,

i~

Whether the transfer of Mr Al Rawj and Mr El
Banna wa in any way connected to the arrast and
detention in the United Kingdom of Abu Qatada and -

of Mr Al Rawi’s and Mr EJ
Banna’s rendition to
Afghanistan, and the natupe
of their treatment while
detained there. The
Defendants make no
posilive case in this regard
but do not admit the
Claimants’ allegations

P

‘ if s0 how:.

L0 | Whether. when and in what | ‘Whether, when and in what terms the Sequrity Service
terms the Security Services | informed US authorities of Mr Al Rawis previous
informed United States i relationship with the Security Service.
authorities of the nature of '
their relationship with M-

Al Rawi ‘ "
1T | The precise circumstances [ ‘Rendition” of Mr Al Rawi and Mr El Banva 1o

Afiehanistan

(a) By whom Mr Al Rawi and Mr E] Banna were
transferred (o Afghanistan;

(b) By whom they were detained during the transfer;

(¢} If the transfer was untawful, by what law it was
50}

{d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
involved in the transfer and if 50, how,

2. Treatment in Afshanistan

{a) How Mr Al Rawi and My 1 Baana were treated in
Alghanistan and by whons;

(b) Whether any of Mr Al Rawi’s and/or Mr £l Banna's
treatment amounted to mistreatment, and il s0
whetlier this mistreatment amounted to inrture andfor |
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i e

to the tor{ of torture (1fsuch atort L\lSlS) andr’or to

trespass to the person:

{¢) I so. whether the Defendants or any of them were
Jointtortfeasors, and iF so. how.

3. Detention in Afehanistan

(2) By whom Mr Al Rawi and Mr Bl Bapna were
detained in Afghanistan; !

(b) Where Mr Al Rawi and Mr El Banna were detained
in Afghanistan:

() Ifthe detention was unjawful and/or ar bitrary, by
what law it was so:

{d) Whether the Defendants or any.of them were
involved in the detention, and if so. how. i

1 The precise circumstances

of Mr Al Rawi's and Mr EJ
Banna’s rendition to

| Guantanamo Bay, and the
1 nature of their treatment

while detained there, Again
the Defendants make no
positive case in this regard
but do not admit the

Ctaimants’ allegations.

1. “Rendition’ to Guantanamo Bay

(a:

By whom Mr Al Rawi and Mr Ef Banna were
transferred;’

{t By whom they were delained during the transfer;

¢) Ifthe transfer was unlawful, by w hd[ law i was so;
(d) \Vhelher the Defendants or any of them were
involved in the transler, and if so. how.,

3
—

I

Treatment in Guantanamo Bay

(a) How Mr Al Rawi and Mr El Banna were treated in
Guantanamo Bay and by whom;

(d} Whether any of Mr Al Rawi's and/or Mr El Banna's

treatment amounted to mistreatment, and il so

whether this mistreatment amounted to torture and/or

to the tort of torture (if such a tort exists) and/or to

trespass to the person;

I $0, whether the Defendants or any of them were

JOU’HIOH{LQSON and if so, how.

—

(e

3. Detention in Guantanamo Bay

(a) By whom Mr Al Rawi and Mr E] Banna vwere |
detained in Guantanamo Bay;

(b) Where Mr Al Rawi and Mr £ Banna were detained
in Guantanamo Bay;

(c) If the detention was unlawhzl and/or arbitrary, by
what Jaw it was 507

78



involved in demnmn. and lf.s,m how,

1) The

[ respect of the alleged
facilitation and participation
in the interrogation of M Al
Rawi and Mr El Banna by
the Security Services:

{a) The extent of any
indireet involvement in the
interrogation of either man
by other  government
authorities in The Gambia
or Afghanistan or GTMO by
ey, the provision of
questions. (The Defendants’
denial is limited (v a denial

{ of any “contact” with either
man during their detention

in Afghanistan);

circumstances of the
interrogation of Mr Al Rawi
and Mr El Banna by British
authorities at GTMO;

{c) Whether during the
course ol one such
interrogation two Security
Service Officers (*Martin’
and *‘Matt") promised to
secure Mr Al Rawi’s release

within a “few months™ if he

agreed to work for them on
release,

precise

. Iorerviews by others

(@) Whether and to what extent the Dei fendants or « uny of |

them are liable for the acts or omissions of other
non-UK interviewing officers:

(b} Whether Mr Al Rawi and Mr £ Banna were
interviewed by non-UK authorities:

(¢} The contents of any interviews of Mr Al Rawi and
Mr El Banna conducted by non-UK authorities:

{d) Whether the Security Service's purpose at all times
was to safeguard the national security of the UK.

2. Interviews by the Security Service in Guantanama
Bay

{a) Whether the purpase of the Security Service in
conducting interviews of Mr Al Rawi and Mr E]
Banna was 1o protect national security:

{b) The frequency. number, content and circumstances
of interviews by the Security Service of Mr Al Rawi
and Mr El Banna in Guantanamo Bay.

(W)

Whether during the course of one interview by
Security Service officers a request was mmade by the
officers 10 Mr Al Rawi “that he would work for the
Security Services upon being released” and, if 5o,

whether they promised that if he agreed he would he

released wi lhm a few months and. if 50, whether Mr
Al Rawi agreed 1o these terms.

|

The degree to which UK
authorities were aware of
ithe unlawful nature of the
detention of Mr Al Rawt
and Mr B! Banna and of

1. Detention

{2) By whom Mr
detained;
{b) Where were they detained;

Al Rawi and Mr Bl Banna were

}
i

N
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(

3 F the detention was (

:»Jz IO
ke
N

law was it so;

e

infawful. by what

(d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were -

2

{a

involved in the detention, and if so, how.

Treatment

—

How Mr AT Rawi and Mr El Banna were treaied
during detention and by whormn:

(b) Whether any of Mr Al Rawi and/or Mr I Banna’s

{c

Lo

(a

(b

Lreatment amounted to mistreatment, and if so.
whether this mistreatment amounted (o torture and/oy
to the tort of torture (if such a lort exists) andfor to
lrespass to the person:

I sa. whether the Defendanis or any of them were
Joint tortfeasors, and if so. how.

—

nowledoe

—

Whether any identified individyal against whom an
allegation of misfeasance in public office is made
knéw about the conditions of detention and/or any
mistreatment suffered by Mr Al Rawi and/or Mr Bl
Banna, ‘
Whether any state of knowledye dan be imputed o
the Defendants, either fndivid ually or collectively, ag |
for example alleged at Paragraph 380 of the
Particulars of Claim.

—

Whether and when the
Security Services first
informed Ministers about

i the full factuat background

to Mr At Rawi's case and,
in particular, the nature of
his refationship with the
Security Services and
whether an unacceptable
level of delay occurred,

T~

Lot

Whether, when and to what exitent the Security
service first informed Ministers about the factual
background to Mr A} Rawi's case and in particular
the nature of his refationship with the Security
Service;

Whether the Security Service owed Mr.Al Rawi a
duty of care to inform Ministers of these matters, and
what the standard of care was;

If'so, whether the Security Service breached this
duty of care.

Whether UK authorities
failed 10 1ake reasonable and
appropriale steps to secure
the release of the men
including by providing

. Whether ins or about July 2005, Mr Al Rawi's
solicitor, Gareth Peirce, was shown a narrative
document describing Mr Al Rawi’s refationship
with the Security Service al the Treasury

Solicitor’s office on the basis of an undertaking
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Gl
evidence t

o the
autharities of the previous
contact between the men
and the Sccurity Service, by
providing information to the
Combatant Status Review
Tribunals as requested by
Mr Al Rawi and by the
Security Services providing
appropriate information 1o
Ministers and other officials

R SE R R

n

Whether any binding contraci was entered into

L e

ocument would he
disclosed ta her in conlidence for the sole |
purpose of considering whether she wished the
document ta be forwarded to the US authorities
an behatl ot Mr Al Rawi;

Whether, having seen the document, Gareth

Peirce made no request for the docurment 1o be

ferwarded to the US authorities;

Whether, had such a request been made. the ,

document would have been sent to the US i

autherities: {

4. Whether the Defendants or any of them had any
legal standing to intervene in the CSRT,

5. Whether and when the Securily Service provided
appropriate information 10 Ministers;

6. Whether and 1o what extent the Defendants or
any of them are liable for the acts or omissions of
other non-UK authorities, including any angoing
faise imprisonment by a non-UK authority,

id

frd

stweeh My Af Rawi and the Security Service;
If there was, what the terms of that contract were;
[f'there was. who the parties were to thas cantract;
Ifthere was, whether any party to the contract
breached it:
Whether, if the Defendants or any of them are liable
for any breach of contract, any such liability caused
barm to Mr Al Rawi;
Whether, but for such action or amission on the pati
of the Defendants or any of them. Mr Al Rawi would
have heen released at an earlier date than 30 March
2007.

17 =

Whether the wrongful
canduct of British
authorities caused harm o
the men, and whether had
such wrongful conduct not
occurred, the men would
have been released at any
earlier stage than in fact
occurred or whether they
lost the chance of such
release,

Whether, i the Defendants or any of them are liable
for any of the alfeged causes of action. any such
conduct caused harm 1o Mr Al Rawi and/or Mr El
Banna: I
Whether. but for such action or amission on the part
of the Defendants or any of them, Mr Al Rawi and/or
Mr El Banna would have been released at an earlier |
date than 30 March 2007 or 19 December 2007
respectively or would not have been subject to any
torture ar trespass to which the court finds that he
was subject. :
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(b}

(d)

Jurisdiction of the United Kingdom to correct

nd Wales:
Whether Mr Al Rawi and/or Mr E Banna has
suffered personal injury for which the Defendants or
any of them are liable:

Whether Mr Al Rawi and/or Mr EI Banna is entitled !
to any damages for past or fulure loss of earnings for i
which the Defendants or any of them are liable, and
t's0 in what amount, and/or whether My Al Rawi f
and/or Mr E1 Banna is entitled to any other special |
damages tor which the Defendants or any of them
are liable;

Whether Mr Al Rawi and/or Mr E| Banna is entitled
to any aggravated. vindicatory or exemplary
damages {or which the Defendants or any of them
are {iable:

Whether Mr Al Rawi and/or Mr El Banna is entitled
to a public inquiry pursuant ta Articles 3-or 5 of the
Eurapean Convention on Hursan Rights into the
provision of information to the United States whilst
boath men were in the jurisdiction of the United
Kingdom and/or by reason of any failure within the

information supplied.

_
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Schedule C - Ric‘hérd Relmay

The following matters are in issue belween the Claimant and the Defendants:

Tha, reason for Mr
Belmar’s travels 1o

Pakistan and Afghanistan

from about June 2001
and the nature of his
activities in those
ceuntries until his arrest
in Pakistan,

|

tJ

Whether Mr Belmar has ever been involved in
errorism;

The nature of Mr Belmar's rciauonxh;p with Abu
Qatada prior o Mr Belmar's detention;

The reasan for Mr Belmar’s travels to Pakistan and
Afghanistan from about 2001;

The nature of his activities in those countries until
his arrest in Pakistan.

The precise nature of the
interrogation and
reatment of Mr Belmar
in Pakistan. In
particular, in respect of
the interrogation of Mr
Belmar by members of
the Security Services in
Pakistan:

(a) The frequency
and number of
such
interrogations;

{b) What was said to

Mr Belmar by

British officials

and in particular

the nature of

RSy

assurances andfor .

promises made 1o
Nt Belmar in the
course of the
intetrogations by
Security Service

{c)
(d)

Z.

{a)

(b) "

—

{c

(d)

(e)

0

Detention in Pakistan

By whom Mr Belmar was detained in Pakistan:
Where Mr Belmar was detained:

i the detention was unfawful, by what law i was 504
Whether the Defendants or any of them were
involved in the detention, and if so, how.,

Interviews by the Securily Servise

Whether the purpose of the Securily Service in
conducting interviews of Mr Belmar in Pakistan was
to protect national security;

Fhe frequency, number, content and circumstances
ol interviews by the Security Service of Mr Belmar
in Pakistan:

Whether Mr Belmar was forthcoming and co-
operative with answers in the course of interviews:
Whether Mr Beimar declared knowledge of terrorists
or lerror organizalions in the course of interviews by
the Security Service:

Whether Mr Belmar answered questions put to him
in reliance on assurances and/or promises made o
Mr Belmar in the course of interviews by the
Security Service;

Whether Mr Belmar was encouraged to cooperate
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{c)

N n' 5 5 a
ofi‘cus and the

nature of threats
made to Mr
Belmar that he
would be laken 1o
Jordan or Egypt il
he did not
cooperate (which
is not admitted
but not denied).

Degreeto which
the Security
Service knew or
ought to have
known of the
untawful nature
of the detention
and of the
mistreatment of
Mr Belmar.

- (b) Whether Mr Beimar was interviewed by non-UK

at u:l was told that, 1Fhe did s 50, the &mcum\ Service

officers conducting the interviews would do their

best to help him.

(g) Whether Security Service officers showed Ivir
Belmar a photegraph of hooded and shackied
prisoners in a vehicle and (old him that these people
were being taken to Jordan or Egypt. and whether
Mr Belmar was threatened with joining the prisoners
in the photograph;

(h) Whether Mr Belmar was given any express or

implied assurances that the Security Service officers

were arrapging with the US and/or Pakistani
authorities {or his return to the UK in exchange for
his cooperation.

)

3. Interviews hy others

(a) Whether and to what extent the Defendants or any of
them are lable for the acts or cmissions of olher
nen-UK interviewing officers:

authorities; .

(¢} The contents of any interviews of Mr Belmar
conducted by non-UK authorities:

{d) Whether the Security Service's purpose at all limes
was {o safeguard the national security of the UK.

(3) How Mr Belmar was treated in Pakistan and by
whom;

(b) Whether any of Mr Belmar’s treatment amounted to
mistreatment, and if so whether this mistreatment
amounted {o torture and/or 1o the tort of torture (if
such a tort exists) and/or to trespass to the person; |

(¢} If so, whether the Defendants or any of them were
joint tortfeasors. and if so, how.,

5. Koowledge
(a) Whether any identified individual against whom an |
allegation of misfeasance in public office is made
knew about the conditions of detention and/or any

2
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by Mr Belmar;

(b) Whether any state of knowledge can be impuied to
the Defendants, individually or collectively, as, for
example, is alleged at Paragraph 380 of the
Particulars of Claim relating to Mr Belmar.

T
e

i the Defendants to Mr

4was anbawful,

Whether the Jevel of
assistance afforded by

Belmar during his
detention in Pakistan
constituted an effective |
*abandonment’ of Mr
Belmar, which exposed
him to arbitrary detention .
and mistreatment
amounting to torture, and

Lo ‘Unlawiul® Effective ‘abandonment’

—

(a) The nature of FCO consular activity in refation to Mr
Belmar and whether, on becoming aware of Mr
Belmar's detention on 13 February 2002, the FCQ
sought consular access to him the next day, and
whether that reguest was repeated on 9 April 2002
and whether a response was received on 12 August
2002 that Mr Beimar was not in detention in
Pakistan.
{b) What the meaning and legal status of an effective
“abandonment” is, and if this was unlawful, by what
law was this so and how.

2. Detention in Pakistan -

(a) By whom Mr Belmar was detained;

(b) Where Mr Belmar was detained:

(¢c) I the detention was unlawful and/or arbitrary, by
what law il was so:

(d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
invoived in the detention, and if so. how.

3. Mistreatment amounting Lo torture

(a) How Mr Belmar was treated in Pakistan and by
whom;

(b} Whether any of Mr Belmar’s treatment smounted o
mistreaiment, and if so whether this mistreatment
amounted to torure and/or 1o the tort of torture (if
such a tort exists) and/or to trespass to the person:

{c) if so, whether the Defendants or any of them were
joint tortfeasors, and if so, how.

Whether Mr Belmar had
been assessed by the FIt
to be suitable for release,

and whether this 1

(a) Whether the Security Service's purpose at all times
was to safeguard the national security of the UK.

(b) Whether the FBI had assessed Mr Belmar as sujtable
for release and/or as not linked with potential

a3
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ass(.‘;smcn{ Wwas

overruled by the Security

Services.

{crrm ism or Aj Qaeda durmg hlS detuntlon :

(c) Wha the detaining authority was for Mr Beimar's i
detention: i

(d) Whether the Security Service. which was not the
detaining authority. had any power to overrule any
FBI assessment of Mr Belmar that had been made;

(e) Whether the Security Service did seek to overrule
any FBI recommendation that Mr Belmar be
released. sought to continue his detention or refused
to agree thar Mr Belimar should be released:

(1) Whether the Defendants or any of them are jointly
Hable for the alleged continued false imprisonment
by the US and/or any alleged torture or mistreatment
bv the US.

Precise c1r<.umstanur> of
Mr Belmar's rendition 10

Afghanistan and the
nature of his treatment

while detained there. N

Beimar's allegations in
this regard are not
admitted by the
Defendants.

I chdltmn to f\fwhfuustan

(a) By whom Mr Befmar was transferred to j
Afghanistan,

{b) By whom he was detained during the transfer;

(¢} 1f the transfer was unlawful, by what law it was so:

{d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
involved in the wansfer and if so. how.

2. Detention in Afehanistan

() By whom Mr Belmar was detained in Afehanistan;

(b)Y Where Mr Belmar was detained;

{c) If the detention was unlawful, by what law it was 50; |

{d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were |
involved in the detention and i so, how. :

3. Treatment in Afuhanistan

(a) How Mr Belmar was treated in Afghanistan and by
whom:

(b) Whether any of Mr Belmar’s treatment amounted 1o
mistreatment, and if so whether this mistreatment
amounted Lo torture and/or to the tort of torture {if
such a tort exists) and/or to trespass to the person;

(¢) ¥ so, whether the Defendants or any of them were
joint tortfeasors. and if so, how.
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Precise nature of the
Security Services’
interrogations of Mr
elmar at Bagram,

jve]

e

purpose of the Seeurity Service in
conducting inerviews of Mr Befmar in Bagram was
te protect national security;

(b) The frequency, number. content and circumstances
of interviews by the Security Service of Mr Belmar
in Bagram:

{c}) Whether Mr Belmar was forthcoming and ce-
operative with answers ir the course of interviews by
the Security Service in Bagram;

(d) Whether during interviews in Bagram, Mr Beimar

provided Security Service Gfficers with information

about his journey from A fghanistan to Pakistan and
his activities in Afghanistan;

Whether Mr Belmar told Security Service officers

that he had sworn an oath of allegiance to Usama

Bin Laden at the Al Farug training camp and

whether Security Service officers considered Mr

Belmar's account to be credible.

{f) Whether the properties of Mr Belmar's brother
(Andrew) and other UK-based associates of Mr
Belmar were searched pursuant (o the Terrorism Act
2000 on or around 17.2.03;

{g) Whether Mr Belmar looked anvthing olher than well
and in good health during interviews conducted with i
him in Afshanistan.

—
T
—

Degree to which the

Security Service knew or
I ought 10 have known of

the unlawlul nature of
the detention and of the
mistreatment of Mr

Belmar in Afghanistan.

1. Detention in Afehanistan

{a) By whom Mr Belmar was detairied:

(b) Where Mr Belmar was detained:

(c) If the detention was unfawfil, by what law it was so:

{d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
involved in the detention and if 5o, how.

2. Mistreatment in Afehanistan

(a) Mow Mr Belmur was ireated in Afghanistan

(b) Whether any of Mr Belmar's treatment amounted 1o
mistreatment, and if so whether this mistreatment
amotinted Lo torture and/or 1o the torl of torture {if
such a tort exists) and/or to trespass to the pETSon;

{¢) I so, whether the Defendants or any of them were
joint tortfeasors, and if so, how.

3, Knowledse

Lh
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{a) Whether any identified individual against whom an
allegation of misfeasance in public office is made
xnew about the conditions of detention and/or any
mistreatment suffered by Mr Belmar:

(b) Whether any state of knowledge can be imputed to
the Defendants or any of them, individually or
collectively. as for example is alleged at Paragraph |
380 of the Particulars of Claim relating to Mr i

Guantanario Bay

§

Precise circumstances of T 1. "Rendition” to Guantanamo Bav

Mr Belmar’'s rendition to
Guantanamo Bay | the
nature of his treatment
while detained there and

| the nature ol his

relationship with
representatives of the
Foreign Office white
detained there.

Belmar.

{a} By whom he was transferred 1o Guantanamo
Bay;

(b} By whom he was detained during the transfer;

(¢} M the transfer was undawful, by what Jaw it was
50;

(d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
involved in the wransfer and i so, how, 'j

2. Treatment in ‘Guantaname Bay

(a) How Mr Belmar was treated in Guantanamo Bay
and by whom:

(by Whether any of Mr Belmar's treatment amounted to
mistreatment, and if so whether this mistreatment
amounted to torture and/or to the tort of torture {if
such a tort exists) andfor 1 trespass (o the person;

(¢) 11 so, whether the Defendants or any of them were
joint tortfeasors, and if so, how.

3. Mature of Mr Belmar's refationshin with
represeniatives ol the FCO while detained there.

(@) The frequency and purpose of the Welfare Visits
made by Welfare Visilor 3 and Welfare Visjtor 4
from the FCO;

{b) The content of the Welfare Visits conducted by
Welfare Visitors 3 and 4:

{¢) Whether the reason for Wellare Visitor 47s late
arrival at Guantanamo Bay on 8 September 2003
was that hjs plane had broken down and whether this

6
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in turn was ihe reason that Mr Bbh'ﬂd[‘ had been kept
waiting in the interrogation block, and whether the
Welfare Visit instead took place on 9 September
2003,

Precise nature of My
Beimar’s interrogations
by the Security Services
while detained in
Guantanamo Bay and
whether he was given an
assurance by them,

{a) Whether the purpose. of the Security Service in
conducting interviews of Mr Belmar in Guantanamo
Bay was to protect national security:

{b} The frequency, number, content and circumsiances
of interviews by the Securitv Service of Mr Belmar
in Guantanamo Bay;

(¢} Whether Mr Belmar was forthcoming and co-
operative with answers in the course of interviews by
the Security Service in Guantanamo Bay;

{d} Whether Mr Belimar provided information about a
number of individuals based in the UK and
elsewhere,

10

Degree to which the

Security Service knew or

ought to have known of
the unlawful nature of
the detention and of the
mistreatment of Mr
Belmar in Afghanistan,
{sic.)

1; Detention in Guantanamo Ray

() By whom was Mr Belmar detained in Guantanamo
Bay:

. (b) Where Mr Belmar was detained in Guantanamo Bay;

{¢) 1l the detention was unlawful, by what law it was so;
{d) Whether the Deféndants or any of them were
involved in the detention and if so, how.

2, Mistreatment ih Guantanamo Bay

(&) How Mr Belmar was treated in Guantznamo Bay ;
(b) Whether any of Mr Belmar’s treatiment amounted to
mistreatment. and if so whether this mistreatment

amaunied 1o torture and/or to the tort of forture (if
such a lort existy) and/or to trespass (o the person;

(¢} 1 so, whether the Defendants or any of them were
joint wortfeasors. and if so, how,

3. Knowledge

(2} Whether any identified individual against whom an
aflegation of misfeasance in public office is made
knew about the conditions of detention and/or any
mistreatment suffered by Mr Belmar:

() Whether any state of knowledge can be impuled to

SO |
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the Dufc‘ndam‘a mdmduallv or collechw,lv as for

example is alleged at Paragraph 380 of the

Particulars of Claim relating to Mr Belmar.

| Whether the Security
Services deliberately
intervenced 1o frustrate the
release of Mr Belmar
from Guantanamao Ray
and deliberately or
negligently represented
that evidence relied upon
by the US was reliable,
adequate and/or UK
authorities failed
themselves to take steps
to assist Mr Belmar,

{a) Whether the ie(,urily and 1nLc:stc?.1:»—cT>cr\ jces
purpose at all times was to safeguard the national
security of the UK;

(b) Who the detaining avthority was for Mr Belmar's |
detention; :

(¢) Whether the Defendants or any of them were able (o |
assess the reliability and/or accuracy of the evidence |
relied upon by the US and if so what it was: 1

{d} Whether the Defendants or any of themn acting within }

their lawful powers look steps to assist Mr Belmar
insofar as they were able;

() Whether the Dafendants or any of them are jointly
trable for the alleged continued false i imprisonment

by the US and/or any alleged torture or mistreatment
by the LS.

——

Nature of Mr Belmar's

| hearing before the CSRT

and whether the S

| authorities were relying

on material supplied by
the Security Services

{a) Whether the US authorities were relymﬂ on material |
suppiied by the security and intelligence services; i

(b) I so, whether the security and inteltigence services
acted unlawfully in supplying such Information.

{c) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
invotved in Mr Belmar's hearing before the CSRT
and if so how. ]

—
(9%}

Whether any binding
confract was entered into
between Mr Belmar and

the Security Services; if

so, whether the Security
Services breached this
contract; and if' so,
whether those breaches
of coniract caused Mr
Belmar to be detained for
a longer period of time
than he would otherwise
have been,

{f) Whether, but for such action or omission on the part

(2) Whether any binding contract was entered into
between Mr Belmar and the Security Service;

(5) If there was, what the terms of that contract were:

(¢) If there was, who the parties were to that contract;

(d) If there was, whether any party to the contract
breached it;

{¢) Whether, if the Defendants or any of them are liable
for any breach of contract, any such liability caused
harm to Mr Belrar;

of the Defendants or any of them, Mr Befmar would

have been released al an earlier date than 25 January
2045,

Whether the wrongful
conduct of British
authorities cavsed harm
to Mr Belmar and
whether had such

(a) Whether, it the Defeadants or any of them are liable
for any of the alleged causes ofaclmn any such.
canducl caused harm to My Belmar:

{&) Whether, but for such action or omission on the part
of the Defendants or any of them, Mr Betmar would
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wrongful conduct not
oceurred, Mr Befmar
would have been released
at any earlier stage than
in fact occurred. or
whether they lost the
chance of such releaqc

have been relcascd atan carlier date than 25 Januar\ !
2005 or would not have heen subject to any torture i
Or espass 1o which the court finds that he was '
sublect, !

‘ Rumed

e

ﬁé\* the law of England and Wales:

(a) Whether Mr Belmar has suffered personal injury for
which the Defendants or any of them are liable;

(b) Whether Mr Belmar is entitied to any damages far {
past or future loss of earnings for which the ;
Defendants or any of them are liable, and if'se in
whal amount. and/or whether Mr Belmar i is entitled
to any other special damages for which the
Defendants or any of them are fiable;

{¢) Whether Mr Belmar is entitled to any aggravated,
vindicatory or exemplary damages for which the
Defendants or any of them are liable:

(d} Whether it would be irrational not to hold a public |
inquiry into the circumstances alleged in this case in !
the event that a public inquiry is ordered into the acts !

E)
.1
l

or omissions of the Securt ity Service in November or |
December 2002 in failing w correct information
regarding Mr E| Banna and My Al Rawi.
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Schedule I — Omar Deghaves

The following matters ace in issue between the Claimant and the Defendants:

143 ever been involved in
2. Whether Mr Deghayves applied for nationality in
1998 but this was refused on residence srounds:

The nature und purpose of Mr Deghaves’ travels 1o
Afehanistan / Pakistan from 2000 onwards.

(a) By whom Mr Deghaves was arrested;

(b Where Mr Deghaves was arrested;

(¢} If the arrest was untawtul, by what law was it so:

(d) Whether any of the Defenidants had any prior
knawledge of Mr Deghaves’s arrest;

() Whether the Defendants or any of them were
involved inthe detention, and if so, how.

{a) By whom Mr Deghayes was detained;
{b) Wheare Mr Deghayes was detained;

t¢) [f the detention was unlawful. by what law it was go:

{(d) Whether the Defeadants or any of them were
involved in the detention. and if so, how.

(a) How Mr Deghayes was treated in Pakistan and by

(b} Whether any of Mr Deghayes’s treatment amounted
to mustreatment, and if so whether this mistreatment
amounted o lorture and/or tc the tort of torture (if
sucl a o1t exists) and/or to trespass to the person:

(¢) Ifs0, whether the Defendants or any of them were
joint tortfeasors. and if so, how.

a . Whether Mr Deghayes !
lerrorism:
3,
! The precise I. Arrest in Pakistan
circumstances of the
arrest of Mr Deghayes in
Pakistan and his
freatment while detained
there. -
2. Detention in Pakistan
3. Treatment in Pakistan
whom;
2 Precise circumstances

(a) Whether the purpose of the Security Service in




5
|
|
|
;
|
1
i

e,

conducting fMr Deghayes in Pakistan
! interrogation of My was 1o proteet national securily;
- Deghaves by the Security (&) The frequency, number, content and circumstances
Services during his of interviews by the Security Service of Mr
' detention in Pakistan, Deghayces in Pakistan:
: (¢} Whether Mr Deghayes was fortheomi ng and co-
Operative with answers in the course of interviews:
(d) Whether Mr Deghayes admitted zoing to Bosnia and
; that he had tinks with the LIFG:
i (¢) Whether any specific assurance was given to Mr
i . o _%__H“QE%EX%___@}’ sSecurity Service interviewers,
3 Degree 1o which the 1. Detention in Pakistan
Security Service knew or
ought to have known of (a) By whom My Deghayes was detained;
the unlawful nature of [ (b} Where Mr Deghayes was detained:
the detention and of the {¢} Ifthe detention was unlawful, by what law it was 50:
mistreatment of Mr (d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
Deghaves in Pakistan. mvolved in the detention, and if so, how.
‘ 2. Mistreatment® in Pakistan

{a} How Mr Deghayes was treated in Pakistan and by

whom: :

| (b} Whether any of My Deghayes®s treatment armounted
o mistreatment, and if so whether this mistreatment
amounted (o torture and/or 1o the 1ort of torture (if
such a Lot exists) and/ior to trespass to the person;

() If so, whether the Defendants or any of them were
joint tortfeasors, and if so, how,

3. Knowledge

(a) Whether any jdentified individual against whom an
allegation of misfeasance in public office is made
knew about the conditions of detention and/or any
mistreatment suffered by Mr Deghayes:

(b) Whether any state of knowledge can be imputed to
the Defendants, individually or collectively, as far
example is alleged in Paragraph 380 of (he

- Particulars of Claim relating to Mr Deghayes,
Afehanistan. % _ L B :
4 Precise circumstances of | 1. Rendition’ 10 Afchanistan

] Mr Deghayes® rendition

i { 10 Afghanistan and the (8) By whom Mr Deghayes was transferred to

| {nature ofhis freatment  {  Afghanistan: '

i
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i el
was detained during the trapsfer:
() [fthe transfer was inlawful, by what law it was so:
{d) Whether the Defendants or any of them wers
involved in the transfer and if so. how.

R

2. Delention in Afvhanistan

(a) By whom Mr Deghayes was detained;

(b) Where Mr Deghayes was detained:

(¢) 1fthe detention was unlawful. by what law it was so;
{d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
invohved in the detention: and if so. how,

3. Treatment in Afehanistan

{a) How Mr Deghaves was trealed in Afghanistan and
by whom; |

(b) Whether any of M Deghayes's treatment amounted
to mistreatment, and if so whether this mistreatment
amounted to torture and/or te the tort of torture (if
such a tort exists) and/or to wespass 10 the person;

{¢) If so, whether the Defendants or any of them were

Joint tortfeasors, and if 5o, how.

The degree to which the
Security Service knew or
ought ta have known of
| the unlawful nature of
the detention and of the

mistreatment of Mr
Deghayes in
Afghanistan.

1. Detention in Afehanistan

(a) By whom Mr Deghayes was detsined:

(b} Where Mr Deghayes was detained:

(¢) M the detention was unlawful, by what law it was so;

(d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
involved in the detention, and if's0, how.

2. Mistreatment’ in A fehanistan

(2) How Mr Deghayes was treated in Afghanistan and

by whom:

(b} Whether any of Mr D-eghayes’s treatment amounted
to mistreatment. and if'so whether this mistreatment
amounted 1o torture andfor to the tort of Llorture (if
such a ot exists) andfor to trespass to the person;

1

H
]

{¢} 1 so, whether the Defendants or an y of them were
Jjointrortteasors, and if so, how.

2. Knowled ge

{a) Whether any identified individual apainst whom an

el
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i ; sfeasance in pubiic office is made :
knew about the conditions of detention and/or any |

! { , mistreatment suffered by Mr Deghayes: :

L f

!

s

allegation of mi

(0) Whether any state of krowledge can be imputed to
the Defendants, individually or collectively, as for
I example is alleged i Paragraph 380 ofthe
S ~—e | Particulars of Claim relating o Mr Deghav&s._%_m_q,
6 Precise circumstances oﬂ (a} Whether the purpose of the Security Service in i
Mr Deghaves's conducting interviews of My Deghayes in !
intrrogation by the Afghanistan was 1o protect national security; '
Security Services whife | {b) The freq uency, number, content and circusnstances
detained in Afghanistan. of interviews by the Security Service of Mr 1
Deghaves in A [ehanistan; . i
{¢) Whether Mr Deghayes was ﬂmhcoming and co- !
Operative with answers in the tourse of interviews by
the Security Service in Afghanistan;
(d) Whether My Deghayes confirmed that he was well
enough to be interviewed on 24 June 2002;
(€) Whether Mr Deghayes 1o)d Sécurity Service
interviewers that he had not eaten for 2 days;
(f} Whether an Y assurances were given 1o My Deghayes
- by Security Service interviewers: i
) Whether Security Service interviewers were told thag i
Mr Deghayes did not have malarias 5
(h) Whether Mr Deghayes avpeared fit and mentally
alert during interview on 3 July 2002: i
I ' (i) Whether My Deghayes said in mterview on 6 July f
|

|
|

R e S

|
|

i
|

, 2002 that he continped to cat only bread and water

I e bECRUSE the food was up alatable, ~ ]
7 Degree to which the . Detention by ather agencies in Pakistan and :
detention and Afghanistan o
interrogation of Mr :

i Deghayes by other (a) By whom the Claimant was detained; |
agencies in Pakistan and (b) Where the Claimant was detained: j
Afghanistan was based {¢) If the detention wag unlawful, by what layw was it $o;

t on material supplied by (d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were !

the Security Services ' invalved in the detention and if so, how. i
wrongfully and/oe ' f
without adequate 2. Interviews by others i
assurances, '

() Whether and 10 what extent the Defendants or any of |

' them are Hable for the aets Of omissions of other J

; non-UK interviewing officers: !

'f [ (b) Whether Mr Deghayes was interviewed by nen-UK '

L _ o authoritjes; e . N

4
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ny interviews of Mr Deghayes
condacied hy non-UK authorities:
{d) Whether the Security Servicey purpoge at all times
was 1o safeauard the national security of the UK.

3. Passine of information

(a) Whether the security and inteliigence services
provided information to the US or others about Mr
Deghayes: '

(b) By what taw the lawfulness of the passing of
information by the security and intelligence services
te other suthorities is (o be judged; _

(¢} Whether it was uniawful for in formation to be
passed by the security and intell igence services;

{d) Whether the Defendants or any of them made or
failed 1o correct Talse statements ta the US or others
about Mr Deghayes.

[N 3.

Precise circumstances of
Mr Deghayes's rendition
to Guantanamo Bay and
the nature of his
treatment while detained
there. Save that is denied
that Mr Deghayes’ eye
was injured at
Guantanamo Bay , the
Defendants make no
positive case in this
regard, but do not admit
the Claimants’
allegations,

. *Rendition® to {iuvantanamo Rav

(a} By whom My Deghayes was transferred to
Guantanamo Bay: »

{b) By whom he was detained during the transfer;

tc) if the transfer was unlawful, by what law it was
50,

(d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
party te the transfer and if so, how.

2. Treatment in Guantanamao Bav

(a) How Mr Deghaves was treated in Guanianamo Bay
and by whom;

{b) Whether Mr Degh ayes's eye was injured at
Guantanamo Bay;

(v} Whether any of Mr Deghayes' treatment amounted
to mistreatment, and if so whether this mistreatment
amounted 1o torture and/or 1o the tort of torture (if
such a torl exists) and/or to trespass to the person;

{d) If s0, whether the Defendants or any of them were
Joint tortfeasors, and if 50, how.

! In respect of Mr

I, interviews bv Security Service in Guantanama Bav
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Hen

Deghayes’s interrogation

while detained at (@) Whether the purpose of the Security Service in
Guantanamo Bay conducting interviews of Mr Deghayes in
(@) The number of Guantanamo Bay was to protect national security;
occasions on (b} The frequency, number, content and circumstances
which Mr of interviews by the Security Service of Mr
Deghayes was Beghayes in Guantanamo Bay, and whether there
Interrogated by was more than one interview by Security Service
! the Security - officers of Mr Deghayves in Guantanamao Bay.
Services while
detained at | 2. Provisien of information to the US and/or Libyan
Guantanamo Bay authorities '
and the nature of
such (a) Whether the security and intelligence services
interrogations; provided information to the US or others shout My |
{b) Whether and to Deghayes:
what extent the (b) Whether and to what extent the US authorities were
Security Services relving on material supplied by the security and E
provided intelligence services: j
information to the (¢) Whether the security and intelligence services were
United States at all times acting in pursuance of their purpose 1o
and/or Libyan protect the national security of the UK.
authorities,
wrongfully andfor 3. Knowledge
without adequate
assurances, that (a) Whether any identified individual against whom an
was used in allegation of misfeasance in public office is made
connection with knew about the conditions of detention and/or any
interrogations of mistreatmoent suffered by Mr Deghayss:
Mr Deghayes by (B) Whether any state of knowiedge can be imputed to
those authorities _ the Defendants, individually or cotiectively, as for
and and as a basis example is alleged in Paragraph 380 of the
for detaining him; Particulars of Claim relating to Mr Deghayes.
() Degree to which
the Security
Service knew or
ought (o have
known of the
unlawful natyre
of the detention
and mistrealment
of Mr Deghayes.
10 Whether US authorities (a) Whether My Deghayes declined to participate in the
relied upon a video tape CSRT;
passed 10 them by orat {b) Whather the Security Service provided the US with a ;
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the instig
Security Services and
failed to provide
information to the US
authorities which was
capable ol undermining
the atleged connection
between Mr Deghayes

and persons portraved in
the video. L

the video had come to the US from another source:
(c) Whether in [act the 1S relied on a fake passpor, the
fact that Mr Deghayes had stayed in the guesthouse
of a senior Al Qaeda leader. the fact thal he was z
member of the LIFG and a video tape to confirm Mr
Deghayes’s status as an enemy combatant;

(d) Whether the Security Service provided or omitted to

provide ather information to the US ang by what law

the lawfulness of these actions is 10 be judged.

Whether there was any
failure on the part of the
Security Services to
provide the FCO and/or
the Home Office with
relevant and accurate
information relating to

1 the detention and

interrogation of Mr

{1 Deghayes, and/or

whether the Foreign

Office and/or Home
Office failed to take any
adequate steps to
investigate such matters.

|

Whether British |
authorities failed 10 take

| other reasonable steps to

assist Mr Deghayes

PO

{a) Whether the Defendants ar any of them owed Mr
Deghayes a duty of care to inform Ministers of any
matters and, if so what matters and by when?

{b) If so. whether the Defendants or any of them
breached this duty of care. -

(c) Whether the FCO andfor the Home Office owed My
Deghayes a duty of care to investigate any matters
and. il so. what matters and by when?

{d} 1f s0, whether the FCO and/or the Homie Office
breached this duty of care. '

(a) Whether any duty of care was owed by the
Defendants or any of them t¢ My Deghayes, and
what the standard of care Was;

{b) Whether. if u duty of care existed, there was any
breach of duty by the Defendants or any of them;

{€) Whether the facts and matters referrad to in
paragraph 443.1 of the Particulars of Claim relating
to Mr Deghayes were true facts or matters within the
knowledge of officers of the Security Service;

(d) Whether taking the steps referred to in the said

paragraph could reasonably have been expacted to

have led to the release of Mr Deghayes.

ke i LN 3 b it S
. i PR {
video of Mr Deghayes at a tratning camp, or whether

v |

|
i
i
I
{

i e,

Whether any binding
contract was entered into
between Mr Deghaves
and the Security
Services: if so, whether
the Security Services
breached this conltract;

and if so, whether those

{a) Whether any binding contract was entored nto
between Mr Deghayes and the Security Service:

(b) Ifthere was. what the terms of that contract were;

{c) f there was, who the parties were (o that contract;

(d) [f'there was. whether any party 1o the contract
breached ir;

(e) Whether, if the Defendants or any of them are liahle

for any breach ofcontrﬁct._any_such liability caused
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hes {
caused Mr Deghayes 1o
be delained for a longer
period of time than he
would otherwise have
been.

harny 10 Mr Deghavyes:
() Whether, but for such action or omission on the part
af the Defendants or any of them. My Deghayes
would have been released at an earlier date than 1§
December 2007,

Whether the wrongful

+ conduct of British

authorities caused harm
to Mr Deghaves and
whether had such
wrongful conduet not
occurred, Mr Deghaves
would have been released
at any earlier stage than
in fact occurred, or
whether they Jost the
chance of such release.

(#) Whether, if the Defendants or any of them are liable
for any of the alleged causes of action, any sueh
conduct caused harim to Mr Deghayes;

(b} Whether, but for such action or omission on the part
of the Defendants or any of them, Mr Deghayes
would have been released at an earlier date than i§
December 2007 or would not have been subject to
any forture or trespass to which the court finds that
he was subject,

By the law of England and Wates:

{a) Whether Mr Deghayes has suffered personal injury
for which the Defendants are liable: i

(b) Whether Mr Deghayes is entitled 1o any damages for |
past or future loss of earnings for which the _
Defendants or any of them are liable, and if so in :
what amount, andfor whether Mr Deghaves is
entitled to any other special damages for which the
Defendants or any of them are liable;

(¢} Whether Mr Deghayes is entited to any aggravated.
vindicatory or exemplary damages for which the

Defendants or any of them are fiable;
(d) Whether it would be trrational not to hold a public |
inguiry into the circumstances alleged in this case in |
the event that a public inquiry is ordered into the acts
or omissions of the Security Service in November or
December 2002 in failing to corvect information :
regarding Mr [l Banna and Mr Al Rawi, i

8
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Schedule E - Moazzem Begg

The following matters are in issue hetween the Claimant and the Defendanis:

] The precise nature of Mr
Begg’s involvement with
training camps in Afghanistan
between about 1993 and 1998

L.

[

2

]

G.

14,

Whether Mr Begg has ever been involved with

terrorisna

The purpase of Mr Begg's visit 1o Fakistan in
1993 and the nature and circumstances of his
alleged offer to visit a mujahideen training camp
in Afghanislan;

The nature and purpose of Mr Begg s visit to the
mujahideen training camp in 1993, the nature
and purpese of the training camp and My Begg™s
financial contributions to extremist {raining:

The nature and circumstances of an alleged
favitation to visit a training camp run by Kurds
in Iraq and the nature and purpose of the said
camp and the circumstances in which it was
operaled and/or was closed;

The pature, timing and extent of MrBegg’s
contact with the *Convoy of Merey® andfor its
representatives:

Whether Mr Begg’s job at DSS terminated jn
1994 as a result of an allegation of obtaining
property by deception:

Whether Mr Bepg was involved in running an
tslamic bookshop in Birmingham in 1998§:

The nature of Mr Begy's relationship with Mr
Hilaii,

The purpose of Mr Begg's relocation to
Afghanistan in June 2001 and the nature and

purpose of his subsequent activities in
Afghanistan; :

The movements of Mr Begg and his family-in

Afehanistan during the Coalition invasion.

i U

100



P

Whether and to what extentl
the Security Services
participated in and/or
facilitated the original
detention of Mr Begg in
Istamabad in about February
2002

L. By whom Mr Begg was detained in about
February 2002;

2. Where Mr Begg was detained:
3. Hithe detention was unjawful, by what law it

was so;

4. Whether the Defendants or any of them knew.,
and if so what the extent of their knowledge
was, about the intention of the US and/or
Pakistani authorities to detain My Begp prior to
his detention.

L)

Whether the Defendants or any of them were
involved in the detention, and if so how,

L)

The nature of Mr Begg's
treatment during his detention

{1n Pakistan,

t. Treatment

(a) How Mr Begg was treated in Pakistan and by
whom;

{b) Whether any of Mr Begg’s treatment amounted
lo mistreatiment and if so, whether this
mistreatment amounted to torture and/or 1o the
tort of torture (if such a tort existsy and/or o
frespass 1o the person;

{c) ¥ so-whether the Defendants or any of them
were joint tortfeasors and if so how,

2. Detention

(2) By whom Mr Begg was detained;

{b)Y Where Mr Begy was detained:

(e} il the detention was unfawful, by what law it
was 50;

(d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
involved in the detention, and if so how.

The precise circumstances
relating to Mr Begg's
interrogation in Pakistan by
the Security Services, and in
particular, (a) whether My
Begg was threatened in the
manner pleaded in PC 276.7
(Begg D 39.6): whether any
assurances were made to Mr
Beygg in the form pleaded in

(a) Whether the purpose of the Security Service in |
|

conducting inferviews of Mr Begg in Pakistan
was 1o protect national security;

(b) The frequency, nummber, content and
circumstances of interviews by the Security
Service of Mr Beay in Pakistan:

{c) Whether Mr Begg was threatened by Security
Service Officer 9030 with continued detention
and/or mistreatment:

(d) Whether Mr Begg was given an assurance by

o

[
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éc"ﬁ'?s 9"(8 co0 D 39.9).

Security %en ice Ofﬁu,r 9030 thdt thc
answered the guestions put 1o him, 1o harm
would come to him and he would be released:
(¢) Whether Mr Bepg answered the questions put to
nim in interview or interviews by the Security
Service interviews in Pakistan fully and frankly.

Whether the level of

assistance afforded by the

Defendants to Mr Begg
during his detention in
Pakistan constituted an
effective ‘abandonment’ of
him, which exposed him 1o

arbitrary detention and

mistreatment amounting to
torture, and was unlawful,

. Unlawful’ effective “abandonment’

(@) Whar the meaning and legal status of an
effective *abandonment” is and if this was
unlawful, by what law this was so, and how it
was unfawful:

(b) The nature of FCO consular activity in relation
to Mr Begg and in particular whether the FCO
made repeated requests for access w0 Mr Begg
which was pained upon his arrival at
Guantanamo Bay;

2. Detention in Pakistan

(a) By whom Mr Begg was detained:

(b) Where Mr Begg was detained;

(¢} Ifthe duls.mson was unfawful anéfor arbitrary,
by what law it was so;

(d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
involved in the detention. and if so how.

3. Mistreatment in Pakistan

(a) How Mr Begg was treated in Pakistan and by
whom;

{b) Whether any of Mr Begg's treatment amounted
to mistreatment and if so, whether this
mistreatment amounted to tarture and/or to the
tort of torture (if such a tort exists) andior to
trespass w the person;

(¢} U so whether the Defendants or any of them

Afghdnistag

were joint tortfeasors and if so how.

6

The precise c1rcumsmnces of
Mr Begg's rendition to

Afghanistan and the nature of

his treatment while detained
there.

b. sRendition’ to Afehanistan

(a) By whom Mr Begg w
Afghanistan; _
(b) By whom he was detained during the transfer

as (ransflerred o
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©)

{d} Whether the Defendants or any of them were

-2

(a)

(b

—

H zhc transfer was uniawful by w hat §a\\ xl was
$0;

involved in the transfer and if so, how.

Treatment in Alvhanisian

How Mr Begg was treated in Afghanistan and
by whom

Whether any of Mr Begg's treatment amounted
to mistreatment. and if so whether thig :
mistreatment amounted to torture and/or o the |
tort of torture (if such a tort exists) and/or to
trespass to the person;

If so, whether the Defendants or any of them
were joint tortfeasors, and if so, how.

1 The precise circumstances of
Mr Begg's interrogation by
the Security Services in
Afghanistan, including in
particuler ta) the nature of the
| complaints made by Mr Begg
1o the Security Services about
the reatment he had received
1 in Afghanistan, and (b)
whether Mr Begg alleged on

one or more occasions that he

had been tortured.

(o]

(8]

L

Whether the purpose of the Security Sarvice in
condueting interviews of Mr Begg in
Afvhamblan was 1o protect nanona] SECUTiLY,

The frequency, number. content and
circumsiances of interviews by the Security
Service of Mr Begg in Afghanistan;

Whether in interview with Security Service
officers on 11.3.02, Mr Begg was told that the
US would only permit communication with his
family via the Red Cross, but as a favour for his
cooperation, they would see if they could get
some family news to Mr Begg:

Whether Mr Begg complained about his
teatment and/or that he was being tortured or
abused, and if he did make such complaints.
what thie nature of them was, including in
particutar whether Mr Begg raised co'nplfunt.s
with Security Service Officer 3132 in July 2002
and whether these were referred to senior
Security Service managers and also to FCO
officials;

Whether Mr Begy asked if he was being held as
a UK or Pakistani citizen and he was told by the
Security Service officers in interview that such a
question should be addressed to 1S authorities,
the reason for this being that the UK was not the |
detaining authority: _ i
Whether Security Service ofticers assessed Mr
Bege to have been involved in extremist and/or

i
i
1
i
-4
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terrorist activities a BEY was
questioned in relation to that assessment,

 Guantaniamo Bay-

8 The precise circumstances of I Rendition’ to Guantanamo Bay |
Mr Bepg's repdition to _ :
Guantanamo Bay, and the i (a) By whom Mr Begg was detained during the
; nature of his treatment while ! transier from Afghanistan to Guantanamo

detained there, Bay:

(b) Whether the US transferred Mr Begg
unlawfully, and if so. by what law it wag
unlawful;

{c} Whether the Deferdants or any of them were
Invalved in the transfer and if so, how.

|3

Treatment in Guantanamo Bav

{a) How Mr Begg was treated in Guantaname Bay

and by whom;

Whether any of Mr Begg's treatment amounted

to mistreatment, and if so whether this

mistreatment amounted to torture and/or to the

lort of tarture (if such a tort exists) and/or to

irespags to the person;

(c) If sa, whether the Defendants or any of them
werg joint tortfeasors, and if so, how.

=X
N

| 9 With regard to the roje of the I. Meetings between officers of the Security
| Defendants in Mr Begg's | service and Mr Bege at Guantanamo Bay
detention  at  Guantanamo
Bay: _ {a) Whether the purpose of the Security Service in

conducting interviews of Mr Begg in
Guantanamo Bay was to protect national

{a) The precise security:
circumstances of the .{b) The frequency, number, content and
meetings between M ~ circumstances of interviews by the Security
Begg and members of Service of Mr Begg in Guantanamo Bay;
the Security Services and (¢) Whether Mr Begg expressed the wish, in
Foreign Office, and in inlerview on 9.2.04 by Security Service officers, !
particuiar the nature of to have his trial in order o bring matters to a i
the complaints made by conclusion.

Mr Begg during such

meetings. 2. Meetings between representatives of the FCO
and Mr Bege al Guantaname Bav
(b)Y Whether the intended _
' prosecution of Mr Begg (8) The nature, number and frequengy of visits by
by the Unired States _the Weifare ¥isitor or visitors from the FCO to

L
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.

supported by the Foreign
Office.

(¢} Whether Security

Services nervened to
frustrate release of My

Begg.

(d) Whether and to what

extent the Security
Services collaborated
with the United Stales
authorities in relation to
the interrogations of My
Begg, by requesting or
instigating such
interrogations, and/or by
supplying information
upon which such
interrogations were
based,

{b) Whether Mr Begg told Welfare Visitor 4 on 3
oceasions {in July, September and October
2004) that he had been forced to sign a
statement at Guantanamo Bay, and whether hig
slatement was credible:

{e} What was said and by whom during the Welfare
Visits,

3. Intended prosecution — supported by FCO

(a} Whether the FCO supported the intended
prosecution of Mr Begg before a Military
Commission;

(o) Whether the FCO expressed reservations about
the Military Commissions 1o US authorifies;

4. Frustration of release

(a) Whether the security and ntelligence
services” purpose at all times was to protect
the national security of the UK,

(b Who the deteining authority was for Mr
Begw’s detention:

(¢) Whether the Defendants or any of them are
Joimly liable for the alleged continued false
imprisonment by the US;

(d) Whether the security and intelligence
services deliberately intervened to frustrate
the release of Mr Begg.

(o

Coltaboration with 1S

(2} Whether the security and intelligence
services’ purpose at all times was to protect
the national security of the UK

{b) What constitutes *collaboration’ and whether
and if so how collaboration constitutes a 1o,
and if so, which tort:

S

6

105




(c) Wheihu and 1w what mem thc Dsulcnd.mts
or any of them are liabfe for the acts and
omissions of other non-UK interviewing
officers, including the US.

10

The degree 1o which the
British authorities knew or
ought to have known of the
unlawful nature and of the

detention of Mr Begg and of |

the mistreatment of him.

1. Detention in Guantanamo Bay

(2) By whom was Mr Begg detained;

(b) Where Mr Begg was detained;

(c) If the detention was unlawful, by what law it
was $o; |

(d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were ;
involved in the detention and if so, how.

2. Mistreasment in Guantanamo Bay

{a) How Mr Begg was treated in Guantaname Bay:

(b) Whether any of Mr Begg's freatment amounted
to mistrzatment, and if so whether this
mistreatment amounted Lo torture and/or to the
tort of worture (if such a tort exists) and/or
trespass Lo the persen;

(c) If so. whether the Defendants or any of them
were joint tortfeasors, and il so, how.

1
{a) Whether any identified individual against whom
an aliegation of misfeasance in public office is
made know about the conditions of detention
and/or any mistreatment suffered by Mr Begg:
(b) Whether any state of knowledge can be imputed
10 the dedant‘: individually or collectively,
as lor example is alleged at Paragraph 380 of the
Particulars of Claim relating to Mr Begg,

Whether the British
authoritizss by their acts of
ormissions were complicit in
the continuing detention of
Mr Begy. and whether they
took reasonable sleps to
secure his release.

{
5

b, Whether the security and intelligence services’
purposes al all times was o protect the national
security of the UK,

2. Who the detaining authority was for MrBegg

continuing detention;

Whether the security and intelligence services

deliberatety intervened to frustrate the release of -

Mr Bepg:

4, Whether the Defendants or any of them are
jointly liable for the alleged continued false-

L]

imprisonment by the US and/or any alfeged

~1

106



Whether the wrongful |
conduct of British authoriiies i
caused harm to My Begg, and |
whether had such wrangfil
conduct not Qceurred, My
Begg  would  pave been
released at any earlier stage
than in  fact occurred ar
whether they lost the chanee
‘”of‘su‘ch u!edqe

&

__he was su}_& ect,

By the law of England and Wales:

L Y the US. )
I Whether. if (he Defendants or any of them are
fiable for anv af the alleged cauyses of action,
any such conduct caysed harm to My Begg;

2. Whether, but for such action or omission on the
part of the Defendants ar any of them, My Begg |
would have been relegsed al an earlier date than
25.1.05 or wayld not have been subject to any i
torture or trespass 1o which the court finds thay f

st e

!

() Whether Mr Begg has suffered personal injury j
for which the Defendants or any of them are
liable;

(b) Whether Mr Bewog is entitled to any damages for ,
past or future foss of earnings for which the
Defendants of any of them are liable, dnd if so in
what amount, and/or whether My Begg is i
entitied to any other Special damages for which
the Defendants or any of them are fiable:

(¢} Whether Mr Begg is entitled 1o any aggravated,
vindicatory or exemplary damages for which the !
Defendariss or any of them are liable;

(d) Whether it would be irrational nol to hoid a
public inquiry into the circumstances alleged in
this case in the event that a public inquiry is
crdered into the acts or amissions of the
Secarity Service in November or December
2002 in failing to correct information regarding
Mr El Banna and Mr Al Rawi,

|
]
]
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Schedule F - Binyam Mohamed

The following matters are in issue between the Claimant and the Defendants;
fasd

1

The nature and purpose
of Mr Mohamed's
activities in Pakistan and
Afghanistan prior to his
detention on 3 April
2002, and the reason for
his travels (Mohamed PC
[2-13; Mohamed D 21),

L. The date of Mr Mohamed’s travel from Britain fo
Pakistan;

2. Whether Mr Mohamed had borrowed the passport
with which he was arrested salely for the purpose of
returning to the Ui;

tal

use to leave Pakistan was a passport issued en 13
July 2000 to an individual named Fouad Zouaoui:
4. Who had effecied the photograph substitution in the
passport with which Mr Mohamed was arrested:
The date of Mir Mohamed's travel from Pakistan to
Afghanistan and how long he was in Afghanistan;
6. The natuic and purpose of Mr Mohamed’s activities
in Pakistan and Afghanistan prior to his deténtion on
3 April 2002 aad the reasons for his travels: ‘
70 Mr Mohamed's intended destination and purpose of
travel on either of the two occasions when he

LA

Whether the passport that Mr Mohamed attemipiad to

attempted to board flights in A ril 2002

Lo =

The precise
sircumstances of Mr
Mohamed's ariginal
detention in Pakistan, the
nature of his treatment
while detained there, and
whether such detention
was unlawful {Mohamed

PC 14-22: Mohamed D
22.28),

1. Detentign

(a) By whom Mr Mohamed was detained:

(b) Where Mr Mohamed was detaine :

(¢} Il the detention was unlawiyl, by what taw it wes so:

(3) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
involved in the detention. and if so, how:

(e) Why Mr Mohamed initially gave a false name and

]

nationality to the Pakistani authorities.
2. Treatment

(a) How Mr Mohamed was treated in Pakistan and by
whom;

(b) Whether any of Mr Mohamed's treatment smounted
to mistreatment, and if so, whether this mistreatment
amounted to 1orture andfor to the tort of torture (if
such a tort exists) andfor to trespass 10 the person:
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() I st 50, . whether the {)c:ﬁsndams or.any of~ them were
joint tortfeasors, and if so, how.

Whether and to what
extent the Securiry
Services knew about the
conditions in which Mr
Maohamed was being held
and the mistreatment
suffered by Mr Mohamed
during his detention in
Pakistan {Mochamed PC

26-27. 31,34, 47.1-472;

Mohamed D 27, 33-34,
38, 43.44, 54),

{a) Whether any identified individual against whom an
allegation of misfeasance in public office is made i
knew aboul the conditions of detention and/or any |
mistreatment suffered by My Mohamed; |

{0) Whether any staie of knowledge can be imputed to
the Defendants. individually or coliectively as for
exampie alleged al Paragraph 26 of the Mahamed
Particulars of Claim.

2. Treaument

{a) How Mr Mohamed was treated in Pakistan and by
whiom;

(b) Whether any of Mr Mohamed®s treatment anmounted
o mistreatient, and if so, whether this mistrearment
amounted 10 torture and/or to the tort of torture (if
such a tort exists) and/or to trespass to the person;

(c) H so, whether the Defendants or any of them were
loint tortfeasors, and if so, how,

4

The precise

circumstances refating to

Mr Mohamed's
interrogation in Pakistan
by the Security Services,
and in particular, ()
whether Mr Mohamed
was threatened in the
manner pleaded in
Mohamed PC 36-37. 40,
47 3 (Mohamed D 45,

8, 33} and (b) whether
Mr Mohamed asked to
see a lawyer. Mohamed
PC 39 (Mohamed D 47).

[. Interview by the Security Service

(a) Whether the purpose of the Security Sgrvice in
conducting an interview of Mr Mohamed in Pakistan
was to protect national security;

{b) The content and circumstances of the interview by
the Security Service of Mr Mohamed in Pakistan;

{¢) Whether the Security Service interviewing officers
had a reasonable belief that Mr Mohamed was a .
member of Al Qaeda:

(d) Whether Mr Mohamed was thrgatened that he would
be transferred to be tortured in a third country:

{¢) If so. who made that threat and exactly what words
were used;

() Whether Mr Mohamed told Security Service officer
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{g) Whether Mr Mohamed tied during the interview by,
the Security Service about the circumstances in !
which he obtained the passport with which he had
attempted to leave Pakistan and his friendship with
Fouad Zouaoui.

Morocct : v E
5 The precise . *Rendition” to Morocco
! circumstances of Mr
Mohamed's rendition to (a) Whether Mr Mohamed was transferred to Morocco:
Morocceo, the lawfilness (b) 1fso. by whom he was transferred:

i of his rendition and (¢} 1f so, by whom was he detained during the transfer:

{ subsequent detention and (d) If the eansfer was unlawiul, by what law was it so;
the nature of his (e} Whether the Defendants or any of them were
treatment while detained invotved in the transfer, and if so. how.
there. The Defendants |

I'make no positive case in 2. Subscquent Detention in Moreceo :
this regard, but do not -
admit Mr Mohamed’s (a) Whether Mr Mohamed was detained unlawfully and |
allegations (Mohamed incommunicado in Marocco for 18 months;

PC 48-51; Mohamed D {b) if so, by whom Mr Mohamed was detained;
39). {c} H so, where Mr Mohamed was detained:
' {d) 1f the detention was unlawful, by what law was it s0;
{e} Whether the Defendants or any of them were
involved in the detention, and if so, how.,
3. Trealment in Moroceo
(@) How My Mohamed was treated in Moroceo and by
whom;
(b) Whether any of Mr Mohamed's treatment amounted
Lo mistreatment. and if so. whether this mistreatment
amounted 1o torture and/or to the tort of torture (if
such @ tort exists) and/or to respass to the person;
{c} I so, whether the Defendants or any of them were
Joint tortfeasors, and if so, how,
6 With  regard 1o the . Knowledue
involvement  of  the
Security Services jn the {a) Whether any officer of the security and intelligence
interrogation  of  Mr services knew it to be the case that Mr Mohamed
Mohamed in Marocco: was detained in Morocco and/or was being subjected
to torture or other trespass (o the person; ‘
{a) Whether "and to ‘

Lsd
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what

(b) The

extent the
Security Services

knew aboul Mr
Mohamed’s
detention in
Morocco

{Mohamed BPC
34; Mohamed D
a1y, the
mistreatment

suffered by Mr
Mohamed during
his detention and
in particular

whether the |

Security  Service
knew or

suspected that Mr

Mohamed Was
being tortured or
that there was 2

risk that he would |

be tortured

(Mohamed PC
55, 39,  Ti4;

Mobamed D 62,
66-67. 1),

precise
nature  of  the
Security Services’
participation  in
and/ur facilitation
of the

interrogation  of

Mr Mohamed
(Mohamed PC
65-70, 71.2-71.5;
Mohamed D 71-

80, 83-841.

( b)

:g,§;¢~'c"§‘..\1',(§f":fi‘;-,§, "c_"}.y LT X _,-.-- -_;:

Whether the securily and m[elhgence serwces were |
party 1o a joint enterprise Lo detain Mr Mohamed ]
urrtawtully in Moroceo andfor to torture him or ,
subject him 10 wespass:

Whether any of the Defendants are jointly Hable for
any alleged false imprisonment, torture or trespass 1o
the person that was committed against Mr Mohamed;
Whether any identified individual against wiom an
altegation of misfeasance in public office is made
knew about the fact of Mr Mohamed s detention
and/er conditions of detention and/or any
mistreatment suffered by Mr Mohamed:;

Whether any state of knowledge can be imputed o |
the Defendants, individually or collectively. as for '
example is alleged at paragraph 34 of the Mohamed
Particuiars of Claim.

Interviews by others

Whether and to what extent the Defendants or any of
thent are liable for the acts or omissions of other
non-UK interviewing afficers, including but not
limited to the Moroceans and 1US;

Whether Mr Mohamed was interviewed during the
period he claims he was in Moroceo;

The contents of any interviews of Mr Mohamed
during the period when he claims he was in
Morocco:

Whether and t6 what extent the Security Service
provided photographs and information to the
Muorocean authorities at any time when My
Mohamed alleges he was detained in Morocco:
Whether there was a joint US/Moroccan interview in
which intervieswers referred to.the “British file® or
questioned My Mohamed about two British
suspected Al Queda members;

Whether the Security Service's purpose at all times
was 10 profect the national security of the UK |
Whether the Security Service is liable for the alleged |
false imprisonment by the US andfor any allege
torture or trespass.

| Afghanistan:
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A

circumstances of Mr
Mohamed s rendition to
and detention in
Afghanistan, the
lasefulness of these
actions and the nature of
vir Mohamed’s treatment
while detained there,
including whether and (o
what extent the
interrogations of Mr
Mohamed during his
detention in Afghanistan
were based on
information and

1 questions supplied to the

United States authorities
by the Security Services

i (Mchamed PC 47.7. 72~

78; Mahamed D 58, §7-
899,

(a) Whether Wir Mohamed was transforred to
Afghanistan:

(b) If so, by whom he was transferyed;

(e} Hso, by whom was he detained during the transfer;

(d} Ifthe transfer was unlawful, by what law was it so:

(&) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
involved in the transfer. and if so, how.

2. Detention in Bagram

(a} Whether My Mohamed was detained here:
{b} If'so, by whom Mr Mohamed was detained:
{¢) I so. where Mr Mohamed was detained:

{d) If the detention was unlawiul, by what law was it so; -

(¢) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
invalved in the detention. and if se, how.

3. Treatment in Bavram

{a) {'Mr Mohamed was detained in Bagram how he was
treated there and by whom;

(b) Whether any of Mr Mohamed’s treatment in Bagram
amounted lo mistreatmient, and if so, whether this
mistreatment amounted tg torture and/or to the tort
of torture (if such a tort exists) and/or to Uraspass o
the person;

() Ifs0. whether the Defendants or any of them were
Joint tortfeasors, and if so, how.

4. Interviews by others

{a

Whether and to what extent the Defendants or any of
them are liable for the acts or omissions of ofher
non-UK interviewing officers, including but not
limited to the Moroceans and US;

(b) The contents of anv interviews of Mr Mohamed
during the period when he claims he was in
Moroucu. '

5. Alleged passine of information / questions
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{a) W hcthtr the C,Ialmant was interviewed during the !

period when he cinims he was in Afghanistan: i
{b}) 1l so by whom he was interviewed; |
{¢) Whether any such interviews relied on information

provided by the Security Service; 3
(d) Whether the Security Service’s purpose at al times

was 10 protect the national secarity of the UK {
(e) Whether the Securily Service is liable for the alleged
false imprisonment by the US and/or any alleged
torture ot trespass.

Guantatiat

8

Whether and to what
extent the interrogations
of Mr Mohamed during

1 his detention at

Guantanamo Bay were

based on information and |

question supplied 1o the
Unired States authorities
by the Security Services

I (Mohamed PC RO;

iohamed T> 61),

1. Alleved passing ofmﬁrrmtlon i quwllonq

(&) Whether the Claimant was interviewed during the
period when he claims he was in Guantanamo Bay;

(b) it s0 by whom he was interviewed;

(c} Whether any such interviews relied on information
provided by the Security Service;

(d) Whether and to what extent the Security Service
provided questions and/or information fo the US
whilst Mr Mohamed was detained in Guantinamo
Bay:

(e) Whether the Security Service's purpose atall times
was to protect the national security of the UK;

() Whether the Security Service is thereby liable for the
alleged false imprisonment by the US and/or any
alleged tarture or frespass.

Whether the wrongful
conduct of British
authorities caused harm
to Mr Mohamed, and
whether had such
wrongful conduct not
oceurred, Mr Mohamed
would have been released
at any earlier stage than
in fact occurred or
whether he fost the
chance of such release
(eg. Mohamed PC §2.83,
FG1: Mobamed D 98,
P01

1. Whether, il the Defendants are tiable for any of the
alleged causes of action, any such conduct C'mxed
harm to Mr Mohamed;

Whether, but for such action or omission on the part |
of the Defendants or any of them, Mr Mohamed :
would have been released at an earlier date than 23
february 2009 or would not have bheen subject Lo any
torture or trespass 1o which the court finds that he
was subject.

2

Remedies:,
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(a}
by

(¢}

(d)

Whethar Mr Mohamed has sy ftered personal mjury
for which the Defendants or any ot them are liable: l
Whether Mr Mohamed is entitled to any damages for i
past or future losg of earnings for which the
Defendants or any of thern are liable, and i so In
what amount, and/er whether Mr Mohamed is
entitled to any other special damages for which the
Defendants or any of them are liable: ;
Whether Mr Mohamed is entitled to any aggravated, ]
vindicatory or exemplary damages for which the
Defendanis or any of them are liable;

Whether it would be irrational not 1o hold a public
inquiry into the circumstances alleged in this case in
the event that a public inquiry is ordered into the acts
Or omissions of the Security Service in November or
December 2002 in faiting 10 correct information
regarding Mr £1 Banna and Mr Al Rawi.

E
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Schedule G — Martin Mubang

o

The [ollowing matters are in issue between the Claimant and the Defendants:

{. The nature and purpose of Mr Mubanga’s

of Mr Mubanga's activities in Pakistan and Afghanistan, between |
activities in Pakistan and October 2000 and February 2002 and.the
Afghanistan, between reasons for hbis travels:
October 2000 and
February 2002 and the 2. Whether Mr Mubanga had been involved in §
reasons for his travels. Islamist exuemist activity
2 The precise t. Detention

circumstances of Mr .
Mubanga's original 7 {a) By whom Mr Mubanga was detained; l
detention in Zambia, the {b) Where Mr Mubanga was detained: |
lawfulness of that (¢c) Ifthe detention was unlawful, by what law it was so; |
detention and the nature (d} Whether the Defendants or any of them were
of Mr Mubanga’s involved in the detention. and if so, how.

| treatment while in
detention, 2. Treatment in Zambia

{a) How Mr Mubanga was treated in Zamhiz and by
whom;

{0) Whether any of Mr Mubanga’s treatment amounted
to mistreatment. and if so, whether this mjstreatment
amounted fo torture andfor to the tort of torture {if
such a lort exists) and/or ta trespass to the person:

(¢} If so, whether any of the Defendants were joint
tort{easors, and if so, how.

3 The precise 1. Interviews by the Securitv Service
circumstances of the :
interrogations of Mr (a) Whether the purpose of the Security Service in
Mubanga in Zambia, in conducting interviews of Mr Mubanga in Zambia
particular by the Security was Lo protect national security:
Services. (0) The frequency. number, content and circumstances |
- ofinterviews by the Security Service of Mr i

. Mubanga in Zambia:

(¢} Whether, in an interview with Security Service
 Officer 233 on 24 March 2002. upon being shown a
typed list of Jewish organisations, Mr Mubanga

stated that the list belonged 1o him and that it had
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list was for the purposes of targeting the {isted
organisations:

(d} Whether Mr Mubanga’s statements abaut (he lyped
list of Jewish organisations were true:

(e} Whether "targeting” the listed organisaticns meart
for the pumoses of a terrorist attack:

(1) Whether or not Mr Muban £a had in fact aceepted
any tasking to target the listed Jewish organisations;

{¢) Whether, jn the same interview on 24 March 2002,
Mr Mubanga stated that he was committed to jihad.,

2. Interviews by others

(&) Whether and to whal extent any of the Defendants
are Jiable for the acts or amissions of other non-LIK
interviewing officers.

I. Whether Mr Mubanga requested contact with the
consular staff from the British High Commission
while he was detained in Zambia:

Whether Security Service Officer 233 refised to

permit such contact with the consular staff from the

British High Commission while Mr Mubanga was

detained in Zambia;

3. Therole played by Her Majesty’s Government
officials during the period of Mr Mubanga’s
detention in Zambia, and what the understanding of
the staff of the British High Commission was in

relation (o the question of consular access

circumstances of Mr
Mubanga's rendition 1o
Guantanamo Bay and the
nature of his trealment
while detained there.

The Defendants do not
make any positive case in
this regard but broadly
do not admit Mr
Mubanga's allegations.

Ja
 Guan{atamo Ba
4 | The precise

I, Rendition' to Guantanamo Bav

{a; By whom Mr Mubanga was transferred to
Giuantanamo Bay,

(b) By whom he was detained during the transfer;

{c} I the transfer wag unlawful, by what law it was so:

{d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
invoived with the transfer, and if so how,

2. Detention in Guantanamo Bay

(a) By whom Mr Mubanga was detained in Guantanamo



Bay:
(b) Where Mr Mubanga was detained;
(c) [f the detention was unlawful, by what law was it so:
(d) Whether the Defendants or any of them were
involved in the detention, and if 50, how.

3. Treamment in Ciuantanarno Bay

{a) How Mr Mubanga was treated in Guantaname Bay
and by whom;

(b} Whether any of Mr Mubanga’s treatment amounted
to mistreatment, and if so whether this mistrearmen:
amounted to torture andior to the 1011 of torsure (if
such a tort exists) and/or to Lrespass to the person;

(e} 1f's0, whether any of the Defendants were joint
tortfeasors, and if so, how.

The precise
circumstances of Mr
Mubanga's interrogations
both by US officials and
by the Security Service.

1. Interviews by Security Servieo

(a) Whether the purpose of the Secu rity Service in
conducting interviews of Mr Mubanga in Zambia
Was Lo protect national security;

{b) The frequency, number, content and circumstances
of interviews by the Security Service of Mr
Mubanga in Guantanamo Bay.

T2

Interviews bv others

(a) Whether and to whal extent the Defendants or any of

them are liable for the acts or omissions of other
non-UK interviewing officers.

Whether the wrongful
conrduct of Byitish
authorities caused harm
to Mr Mubanga, and
whether had such
wrongful conduet not
oceurred. Mr Mubanga
would have been released
atany earlier stage than
in fact occurred or
whether they lost the

chance of such release.

[ Whether. if the Defendants or any of them are Hable
for any of the alleged causes of action. any such
conduct caused harm to Mr M ubanga;

|3

Whether, but for such action or omission on the part
of the Defendants or any of them, Mr Mubanga
would have heen released at an earlier date than 23
January 2005 or would not have heen subject to any
torture or trespass to which the court finds that he
was subject,

Bemedigs

Lo,

Lo
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By the law ol England and Wales-

{a) Whether Mr Mubanga has suffered personal injury
for which the Defendants or any of them are Hable:

(b} Whether Mr Mubanga is entitled to any damages for
Past or future loss of earnings for which the
Defendants or any of them are liable. and if so in ‘
what amount, and/or whether My Mubanga is !
entitled to any other special damages for which the
Delendants or any of them are Liables

(¢} Whether Mr Mubanga is entitled ra any aggravated,
vindicatory or exemplary damages for shich the
Defendants ar any of them are liable:

(d) Whether it would be ircational not to hold & public
inquiry inte the circumstances al leged in this case in.
the event that a public inquiry is ordered into the acts -
or omissions of the Security Service in November or
December 2002 in failing to correct information
regarding Mr £l Banna and Mr Al Rawi,
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